PETER CUBRA
JOHN HALL
KELLY K. WATERFALL

attorneys
3500 Comanche Rd NE, Suite H
Albuquerque, NM 87107-4546

TELEPHONE: FACSIMILE:
(505) 256-7690 (505) 256-7641
July 1, 2014

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL:

John Block I11

Executive Director

NM Developmental Disabilities Planning Council
625 Silver Ave. SW, Suite 100

Albuquerque, NM 87102
John.Block@state.nm.us

Marina A. Cordova

Office of Guardianship Attorney & Manager

NM Developmental Disabilities Planning Council
625 Silver Ave. SW, Suite 100

Albuquerque, NM 87102
MarinaA.Cordova@state.nm.us

Re: JMv. NM DOH, NO. CV-07-604 RB/ACT
Dear Mr. Block and Ms. Cordova:

We are writing to provide to you Plaintiffs’ submission for inclusion in DDPC’s fourth annual report
with respect to implementation of the January 8, 2010 settlement agreement in JM et al. v. New
Mexico Department of Health et al. (“Settlement Agreement”).

Unfortunately, this report is a negative one. Although it has been over four years since Plaintiffs
dismissed their lawsuit against the State in exchange for Defendants’ promises to take specific
actions set forth in the Settlement Agreement, DOH Defendants and DDPC Defendants still have not
provided some of the promised benefits to a number of the hundreds of former Training School
residents who are entitled to the benefits of the Settlement Agreement.

Last year, the Department of Health (DOH) achieved substantial compliance with its initial
obligation to assist the former residents to apply for various government-funded services. The
Settlement Agreement contemplated achieving that result in ten months; but it took over three years.
However, DOH has thus far failed to complete its second obligation: to have its employees, the
Community Services Integration (CSI) case managers, assist the former residents to get the other
services and supports that were recommended for them by the neutral evaluator, above and beyond
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applying for services. In addition DOH has been failing to provide some of the former residents with
the on-going case management services from CSI workers that are also required by the Settlement
Agreement

Noncompliance During the First Year (May 2010 through June 2011)

The letter drafted by Plaintiffs’ counsel on July 1, 2011, that was included in DDPC’s first annual
report, set out the violations of the Settlement Agreement that occurred between May 2010 and June
2011.

In 2010, the Department of Health (DOH) first substantially violated the Settlement Agreement by
excluding from its benefits those people who were enrolled in any Waiver program; over 100 people.
On August 10, 2010, the Arbitrator ordered DOH to promptly cure that violation by arranging for
professionals from the Columbus Organization to provide the required decisional capacity
evaluations to all eligible persons, including those persons enrolled in a Waiver program.

In 2010, Defendants also violated the Settlement Agreement by blocking our ability to evaluate
compliance, and to assist members of the proposed class, by refusing to honor the release of
information forms signed by 30 members of the proposed class. After a November 9, 2010
Avrbitration Hearing, the Arbitrator ordered all Defendants to comply with our record requests within
30 days of receipt of a request; ordered DOH to verify in writing any refusal by a member of the
proposed class to be contacted by DOH agents; and ordered DOH to have its Community Services
Integration project (“CSI”) staff, DOH employee case managers, provide the required periodic visits
to members of the proposed class.

In November 2010, the DOH Defendants issued their first report regarding their actions to comply
with the Settlement Agreement. The report showed that CSI case managers were not visiting
members of the proposed class at least quarterly and were also maintaining caseloads that exceeded
the limit set forth in the Settlement Agreement (no more than 40 people per case manager). On
November 20, 2010, Plaintiffs’ counsel made our third arbitration demand, and on December 16,
2010 the third Arbitration Hearing was held. On January 20, 2011, the Arbitrator ordered
Defendants: to report on the activities of CSI workers; to report periodically on the status of
guardianship, Personal Care Option (PCO) and Waiver applications for members of the proposed
class; to comply with CSI personnel, caseload, and visitation standards; and to meet and confer with
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding provision of notice of the Settlement Agreement to eligible people.

Noncompliance During The Second Year (July 2011 through June 2012)

The details of the violations of the Settlement Agreement that occurred between July 2011 and June
2012 were set forth in the July 2, 2012 letter from Plaintiffs’ counsel that was included in DDPC’s
second annual report.

On August 24, 2011, Plaintiffs’ counsel wrote to Defendants and asked them to address the fact that
at least 29 individuals were not yet receiving the PCO services to which they were entitled under the
Settlement Agreement. We also asked for the names, contact information, and copies of all CSI
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materials pertaining to those individuals to enable us to assist them ourselves, and offered to enter
into the type of confidentiality order we had entered into with the DDPC in order to protect those
individuals’ confidentiality. On November 2, 2011, Defendants responded to some of our questions,
but refused to provide us with the individuals’ names and contact information.

On February 10, 2012, Plaintiffs” counsel again wrote and asked Defendants to promptly address our
ongoing concerns regarding Defendants’ apparent failure to fully comply with the Arbitrator’s
November 2010 and January 2011 Orders, as well as with the Settlement Agreement. On March 2,
2012 we met with Defendants to discuss our February 10, 2012 letter. On April 2, 2012, Defendants
provided a written response that did provide Plaintiffs’ counsel with some additional information,
but did not remedy a number of violations of the 2010 and 2011 Orders, as well as the other
violations of the Settlement Agreement.

On June 4, 2012, Plaintiffs” counsel made our fourth arbitration demand, to remedy Defendants’
failures to fully comply with the 2010 and 2011 Orders, and seeking additional remedial orders
regarding Defendants’ other violations of the Settlement Agreement.

On June 22, 2012, Defendants provided Plaintiffs’ counsel with updated redacted Service Plans
regarding the individuals referred by Columbus for services from CSI workers. Those Service
Plans, unfortunately, provided additional and ongoing evidence that some CSI workers were not
providing our clients with the level of case management support required by the Settlement
Agreement.

Noncompliance During the Third Year (July 2012 through July 2013)

The details of the violations of the Settlement Agreement that occurred between July 2012 and June
2013 were set forth in the August 15, 2013 letter from Plaintiffs’ counsel that was included in
DDPC’s third annual report.

On July 19 and 24, 2012, the fourth Arbitration Hearing was held. The Arbitrator ordered that:
1) The parties cooperatively determine and designate the information about Defendants’
actions to implement the Settlement Agreement which Defendants would provide to Plaintiffs’
counsel in order to comply with Section 9 of the Arbitrator’s January 2011 Order requiring a “third
report” regarding CSI actions; and
2) DOH promptly prepare and distribute a spreadsheet containing the agreed-upon
information.

On January 16, 2013, nearly six months later, DOH provided Plaintiffs’ counsel with their initial
Spreadsheet and attachments, and then updated the Spreadsheet and attachments nine days later in
response to our concerns with their initial production. On February 7, 2013, Plaintiffs’ counsel wrote
to DOH and its counsel, identifying with specificity how even their updated Spreadsheet and
attachments demonstrated a continuing failure to fully comply with the Arbitrator’s Orders. On
February 11 we met with DOH to discuss our concerns. On March 8, Defendants responded to the
February 7 letter, including a second updated Spreadsheet and attachments. The letter belatedly
addressed the concern we had identified the previous summer regarding 38 specific individuals who
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had not received all of their quarterly, in-person CSl visits. While the March 8 updates did provide
some additional information, they nevertheless represented a continuing failure to remedy
substantial violations of the Arbitrator’s June 2012 and January 20, 2011 Orders.

On May 13 Plaintiffs’ counsel made our fifth arbitration demand, requesting that the Arbitrator
conduct an arbitration to remedy DOH’s failures to fully comply with the Arbitrator’s Orders, and to
enter additional remedial orders regarding DOH’s other violations of the Settlement Agreement.

On June 17, the fifth Arbitration Hearing was held. The Arbitrator found that, as of June 2013, DOH
had completed the DD Waiver application process for all but a small number of people; that the PCO
application process had been completed by DOH, except those for whom PCO services were
“declined,” and that guardianship applications had been submitted to the DDPC for those people
recommended by Columbus. The Arbitrator concluded that Defendants had substantially complied
with the requirement for completing applications for Waiver, PCO and guardianship services for
members of the proposed class identified by Columbus as needing those applications.

At the June 17 Arbitration Hearing, evidence was presented regarding a number of individuals,
indicating that they were in no better position than a year ago, in spite of our drawing specific
attention to their plights. Plaintiffs requested additional orders regarding CSI services. However,
the parties disagreed about what the Settlement Agreement requires CSI workers to do for people,
beyond the applications for Waiver, PCO and guardianship services.

Concerns Regarding DDPC’s Actions During the Third Year Regarding Guardianship

In October 2012, Plaintiffs’ counsel requested a meeting with DDPC and DDPC’s counsel to discuss
with DDPC’s Executive Director, Agnes Maldonado, the situations of the 26 individuals listed in
DDPC Office Of Guardianship’s (OOG) Second Annual Report as not having received the
guardianship for which Columbus had made a referral. Many of those people had their guardianship
file at OOG closed, without any court determining whether the person needed the guardianship
support recommended by Columbus. After the meeting in December 2012, DDPC agreed to petition
the applicable courts to consider guardianship petitions for those additional 26 people for whom
guardianship was recommended by Columbus.

At the time we submitted our August 15, 2013 letter for inclusion in DDPC’s third annual report, we
understood that DDPC had initiated all such petitions. However, evidently due to staffing issues in
OOG, many of those cases did not move forward. When we wrote the August 15, 2013 letter, we
hoped that those guardianship cases would soon be moved forward by OOG, enabling a judge to
decide whether, and to what extent, any form of guardianship is necessary for the people identified
by Columbus as needing a guardian. Unfortunately, DDPC has not cured the problems we identified
in August 2013.

Noncompliance During the Fourth Year (August 2013 through June 2014)

The remainder of this letter summarizes the areas of noncompliance since we wrote our August 2013
letter.
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On September 6, 2013, the Arbitrator convened a status conference, at the end of which he directed
the parties to meet to discuss Plaintiffs’ remaining concerns with CSI’s work on behalf of 27
individuals under Paragraph 3(d) of our Settlement Agreement.

The parties met on September 6, 16, and 23, and October 16, 2013. On November 6, 2013, the DOH
Defendants provided Plaintiffs with a letter and attached documentation, summarizing our meetings
and CSI’s efforts to implement the recommendations for each of the 27 individuals. (Letter attached
as Ex. 1.) Plaintiffs responded to Defendant’s letter on November 18, 2013. (Letter attached as Ex.
2.)

On December 5, after reviewing the two letters, the Arbitrator determined that the parties had not
achieved what the Arbitrator had intended, and asked the parties to jointly develop a series of tables
of information to help Plaintiffs’ counsel, and if necessary the Arbitrator, to more efficiently assess
whether the Settlement Agreement’s terms had been met.

On January 15, 2014, the parties provided their joint tables to the Arbitrator. The next day, the
Avrbitrator conducted a telephonic hearing with the parties. The Arbitrator confirmed with Plaintiffs’
counsel that we had received sufficient documentation and other information from Defendant in
order to make our determination of whether CSI had implemented the Columbus recommendations
for the 27 individuals pursuant to Paragraph 3(d) of our Settlement Agreement.

On February 13, 2014, Plaintiffs’ counsel made our sixth arbitration demand, on the basis that,
among the twenty-seven (27) people who have signed Releases of Information forms authorizing the
State to provide Plaintiffs’ counsel with their records, DOH’s CSI workers had failed to fulfill the
requirements of the Settlement Agreement in two ways. First, a majority of those people had still
not received the benefit of one or more specific recommendations made by Columbus, although
years had gone by since those recommendations were made. Second, most of those individuals also
had not received the “assistance from the CSI project” that DOH promised to provide them. Atthe
Avrbitrator’s request, we agreed to address only the first failure by DOH in the sixth Arbitration
Demand, reserving for a future date our opportunity to address the second failure. We requested that
the Arbitrator conduct an arbitration to address these ongoing violations of the Settlement
Agreement and requested that the Arbitrator enter additional remedial orders regarding those
violations. (Demand attached as Ex. 3.)

On March 14, DOH Defendants responded to our sixth arbitration demand in a letter to the
Avrbitrator. (Response attached as Ex. 4.) On April 1, Plaintiffs” counsel replied to DOH Defendants’
response in a letter to the Arbitrator. (Reply attached as Ex. 5.) The sixth Arbitration Hearing,
regarding the people who still have not received the benefit of one or more specific
recommendations made by Columbus, is scheduled for July 29, 2014.



Ongoing Concerns Regarding DDPC’s Failure to Complete Guardianship Proceedings

On December 18, 2013, Plaintiffs” counsel learned from DDPC that it had recently hired Marina
Cordova as DDPC’s new legal counsel and head of the Office of Guardianship (OOG). We were
invited to meet with Ms. Cordova and the new DDPC Executive Director, John Block IlI, in a
couple of months, giving Ms. Cordova a chance to familiarize herself with the status of the Foley
guardianships and to begin working on all remaining guardianships.

On February 7, 2014, Plaintiffs’ counsel met with Ms. Cordova, Mr. Block, and DDPC’s counsel in
the Foley case. We discussed, among other things, what still remained to be done by DDPC under
the Settlement Agreement for the 26 individuals listed in OOG’s Second Annual Report as not
having received the guardianship for which Columbus had made a referral. DDPC committed to do
the following:

1. Provide us with a copy of the form of petition for guardianship used by DDPC’s former legal
counsel for our review and comment;

2. File petitions for appointment of corporate guardians under the Probate Code, in the nearest
county, respectively, for each of the five individuals (Individual ## 3385, 3386, 3476, 3521,
and 3544) residing on Navajo lands, and also appraise the Navajo Human Services
Department of these petitions and work with them to secure guardianships for those five
individuals;

3. File a petition for corporate guardianship for each of the eight remaining individuals
(Individual ## 858, 3404, 3407, 3413, 3443, 3473, 3481, and 3792) whose cases DDPC
identified to us in our 2/7/14 meeting as “Pending”; and

4. For Individual #4107, file a motion to amend her guardianship (currently only a sole
guardianship in favor of her mother, who is herself partially incapacitated) to provide for
either a co-guardian or a successor guardian.

On June 25, after having not heard anything from DDPC in over four months since our February 7
meeting, Plaintiffs’ counsel emailed Ms. Cordova, Mr. Block, and Norman Weiss, DDPC’s counsel
in the JM case to follow-up on our February 7 meeting regarding the agreed-upon actions and asking
where things stand on those actions. On July 1, Mr. Weiss emailed us a copy of DDPC’s draft
petition, in response to DDPC’s commitment #1 immediately above. There has been no other
response to our June 25, 2014 email.

We are sad to report that, during the past year, the performance of DDPC’s OOG has been
characterized by frequent disorganization and a lack of follow-through regarding its obligations
under the parties’ Settlement Agreement. Of the 26 individuals listed in OOG’s Second Annual
Report in 2012 as not having received the guardianship recommended by Columbus, at least half of
those people still have not received a guardian. Since August 2013 we have been patient,
recognizing that DDPC’s personnel issues have handicapped its efforts. However, nearly five
months ago Plaintiffs’ counsel met with DDPC personnel to discuss what needs to be done by the
OOG for those 26 individuals. Since that time, we have received no information from DDPC (other
than the above-mentioned draft petition sent by Mr. Weiss on July 1, 2014), which leads us to
conclude that nothing has been accomplished by the OOG since February 7. We are deeply
concerned that, contrary to DDPC’s mission to "promote advocacy, capacity building, and systemic
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change to improve the quality of life for individuals with developmental disabilities and their
families,” OOG’s performance over the last four and a half years, with respect to the former Training
School residents who are beneficiaries of our Settlement Agreement, has not improved the quality of
life for the former Training School residents who need assistance with their decision-making.

Conclusion

These are the most important areas in which the Settlement Agreement remains out of compliance at
this time:

1. CSI personnel have not implemented some of the recommendations made by Columbus for
members of the proposed class, and some CSI personnel are not effectively providing needed
case management assistance to members of the proposed class;

2. Most members of the proposed class who are eligible for, and need, Waiver services are not
yet getting them;

3. Dozens of members of the proposed class who need assistance in order to make decisions
still do not have the guardian or medical surrogate decision-maker which they need;

4. ALTSD Defendants are improperly reducing Personal Care Option services for members of
the proposed class, and CSI case managers are not effectively assisting the class members to
prevent inappropriate reductions in PCO services;

5. People who are stuck in nursing homes are not getting assistance from CSI to get out; and

6. DDPC’s OOG has still not done everything in its power and within its authority to secure a
guardianship for each individual for whom Columbus made a referral.

Over four years have passed since Plaintiffs agreed to dismiss their lawsuit against Defendants in
exchange for Defendants taking the actions set forth in the Settlement Agreement. Nevertheless,
many members of the proposed class still have not received all of the benefits of the 2010 Settlement
Agreement.

In light of Defendants’ continuing failures to comply with some of their obligations under the
Settlement Agreement, counsel for Plaintiffs yet again request that the DDPC advocate on behalf of
former residents of the Training Schools and assist those people to obtain the things to which they
are entitled under the Settlement Agreement. We also request that DDPC promptly provide the
former residents of the Training School who need guardians with the assistance they need from the
OOG to obtain needed support in making informed choices about their living arrangements, their
finances, and the services they receive.

Very truly yours,

Deter Cubra

Peter Cubra

cc via electronic mail:
Weiss, Norm (nweiss@srw-law.com)
Walz, Jerry A. (Jerryawalz@walzandassociates.com)
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Kunkel, Kathyleen (kathy kunkel@walzandassociates.com)
Sanchez-Sandoval, Gabrielle, General Counsel, DOH
(Gabrielle.SanchezSandoval @state.nm.us)

Marks, Allison, General Counsel NM ALTSD (Allisonr.marks@state.nm.us)
Skaar, Sandy, Chair, DDPC (Sandy@sdchoices.com)

Peifer, Charles (cpeifer@peiferlaw.com)

Simmons, Nancy L. (nlsimmons@swcp.com)

Higgins, Rachel E. (rachelhigginsjd@gmail.com)

Hall, John (johnfordhall@mac.com)




1 If . , Esq.
Jerry A. Walz, Esq. Walz and Associates Altred D. Creecy, Esq
S — Kathyleen M. Kunkel, Esq.
i Texas & Col Attorneys at Law Anne T. Alexander, Esq.

in Texas & Colorado
“Making Legal History” Samuel L. Winder, Esq.

133 Eubank Bivd NE
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87123

{505)275-1800
(505) 275-1802 FAX

November 6, 2013

SENT VIA EMAIL

Peter Cubra, Esq.
3500 Comanche NE, Suite H
Albuquerque, NM 87107

Re: Foley v. DOH, et al.,, Case No. 07-CV-00604-RB-ACT

Dear Peter and John,

Attached are documents for the 32 former residents for whom Plaintiffs raised questions
related to the service plans provided at the September 6 status conference. At that meeting,
Arbitrator Gross directed Defendants to meet with Plaintiffs’ counsel and answer the remaining
questions regarding the extent of the assistance provided or not provided to the 32 former
residents under Paragraph 3d of the Settlement Agreement. Those meetings were held September
6, September 16, September 23, and October 16, 2013.

In addition to the documents included in this communication, Defendants underscore that
significant amounts of information on the assistance provided by CSI workers under the
Settlement Agreement has already been provided to Plaintiffs’ counsel. Following the August
2012 Arbitration, Defendants provided Plaintiffs’ counsel with a grid containing all information
requested by plaintiffs on notice, dates of assessments, referrals to the DD waiver, referrals for
guardianship or Power of Attorney, and Personal Care Option . The grid was accompanied by a
CD containing narrative documentation of all “other recommendations” made by the Columbus
Organization reviewers and recorded in the “Recommendations” field of the Columbus
Assessment tools. The information available to Plaintiffs’ counsel on the grid, as well as the
narrative information on the “Other Recommendations” may be reviewed with the documents
included in this transmission for a more complete representation of the assistance provided by
CSI workers, and the formal recommendations of the Columbus reviews.

At the September 6, 2013 status conference with Michael Gross, the parties were asked to

come to agreement on what services are provided by CSl, in addition to the services detailed in
the grid and “Other Recommendations”. The parties agreed that the job duties as listed by then
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Peter Cubra, Esq.
John Hall, Esq.
November 6, 2013
Page 2 of 3

CSI worker Shadee Brown (attached) describe a spectrum of assistance that may be provided if
requested by the individual or suggested by CSI. Other than the specific settlement agreement
languages to visit at least quarterly, facilitate the application to the DD waiver, PCO or surrogate
decision maker, CSI duties are dependent on the needs and requests of each individual.

Also at the September 6, 2013, status conference, Defendants explained that the formal
Columbus recommendations as recorded in the Recommendations field of the assessment
document are recorded in the “Other Recommendations” document created by counsel.
Columbus occasionally made statements in the summary of the assessment document that could
be construed as “recommendations.” The follow up on these “recommendations’ has been
recorded in the Service Plans created by CSI.

The dates above reflect the meetings with Plaintiffs to address any additional questions
regarding the service plans. Those answers are recorded in the documents attached, titled
“Follow up to September 6, 2013 status conference”. Occasionally, Plaintiffs raised questions
unrelated to any formal or embedded recommendation. Those additional questions are also
included in the attached September 6 follow up document.

We look forward to your response, due November 16, 2013. The parties have already
agreed to a telephonic status conference on Friday November 15, 2013, with Michael Gross.
Since the due date for Plaintiffs’ response falls on a date following the scheduled status

conference, Defendants will contact Michael to see if he prefers to reschedule the status
conference.

Sincerely,

WALZ AND ASSOCIATES

/s/ Kathyleen M. Kunkel
/s/ Anne T. Alexander

Kathyleen M. Kunkel
Anne T. Alexander

KMK/ATA/scc

Enclosure(s): as stated



Peter Cubra, Esq.
John Hali, Esq.
November 6, 2013
Page 3 of 3

cc via email w/out enclosures:

Cathy Stevenson, DDSD Director DOH

Wendy Corry, DOH/DDSD Director of Systems Improvement
Kathy Baker, DOH

Jerry Walz, Esq.



PETER CUBRA
JOHN HALL
KELLY K. WATERFALL

attorneys
3500 Comanche Rd NE, Suite H
Albuguerque, NM 87107-4546

TELEPHONE: FACSIMILE:
(505) 256-7690 (505) 256-7641
Novembcr 18, 2013

VIA EMAIL ONLY: Mike@mijkegrosslaw.com

Mr. Michael A. Gross, Arbitrator
Re:  Defendants’ November 6, 2013 Letter and Attachments
Dear Arbitrator Gross:

To help us all prepare for tomorrow’s teleconference at 11:30 Mountain time, we are sending to you
the Defendants’ November 6, 2013 letter, attached, and this response to the [etter. Time is limited
tomorrow because Jerry Walz, Kathy Kunkel and 1 all have a hearing before Judge Parker at 1:30,
and I hope that sending the letters to you now will enable you to give us directions about next steps
during tomorrow’s conference.

Defendants’ letter, together with this response, make it clear that, even among the twenty people
eligible for assistance from the CSI project who authorized DOH 1o provide their information to
Plaintiffs” counsel, Defendants’ CSI workers have not fulfilled the requirements of the settlement
agreement in two ways. First, many of those people have still not received the benefit of one or more
specific recommendations made by Columbus. Second, most of the eligible individuals also have not
received the “assistance from the CSI project” that they were promised in 2010. That second
problem is now compounded by the recent departures of Chris Futey, the head of the CSI project, as
well as three CSI workers, two of whom have recently been replaced.

The lack of performance of these two requirements of the settlement agreement for these twenty
people is especially concerning, because it seems likely that, due to the advocacy and monitoring by
Plaintiffs’ counsel, these twenty people have gotten superior attention from CSI and Defendants,
compared to the hundreds of other people who are also entitled to the benefits of the settlement
agreement, with whom we are not in contact.

Five of the twenty people, Hiliip Pl CUlNR, TUlNEp GUINEED, /OID POl R | WD 2nd
Juiglh M@ (it is not clear why Mr, Mysilliil is not included in the list of 32 people who
provided Releases), have died since Plaintiffs’ counsel initiated the fourth arbitration demand in June
2012, None of them had alt their Columbus recommendations fulfilled before they died. Included
below is an ex planation of the ways that cach of them didn’t receive the CSI assistance required by
the settlement agreement.

The highly variable performance of CSI workers revealed by the documents provided to Plaintiffs’ |

counsel, described in part below, makes clear that CSI workers have not received the training and



Mr. Michael Gross
November 18, 2013
Page 2

supervision they require in order to properly provide the required assistance to eligible individuals on
their caseloads. Even without further evidence, it is clear that, in addition to promptly fulfilling the
Columbus recommendations, DOH also needs to 1) clarify in writing what it expects CSI workers to
do, and 2) provide closer supervision to its CSI personnel.

Below are descriptions of violations of the settlement agreement of which we are aware. The
descriptions delineate two problems with Defendants’ letter.
[. The letter sometimes misstated the specifics of the concerns which were expressed by us
during our meetings; and
2. The letter often did not list some of the problems with CSI performance that we discussed
during our conferences with Defendants’ counse! (T G, whose discussion you
sat in on, is the most clear example).

Individuals About Whom Plaintiffs Still Have Outstanding Concerns
1. Fapm 1689

In their letter, Defendants’ counscl characlerized the following as all of the concemns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. Pl during their meetings:
1. How does staff solicit a simple “yes” “no”? What happened to communication device?
[NOTE: Althougb we raised these same concerns years ago with Defendants and with tbe
DOH nursing home (Fort Bayard) in which Mr. Pl continues to reside, Defendants’
letter observes that, according to a facility social worker, an SLP in late 2013 is “in the
process of developing an alternative communication program for 26138.”]
2. Why is 1689 on oxygen? [Defendants misstate our concern. We observed that Mr. Fulliji
is now on continuous oxygen, and are concerned about when and why this became a
problem. While their letter states that Mr. Pl was on continuous oxygen back in 2010,
but not in 2011 and 2012, it fails to address why he is back on continuous oxygen in 2013.]

In addition to those issues, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns
regarding Mr. PRIl which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:
3. 1s Mr. Pl receiving the appropriate levels of PT, OT, and SLP, as recommended by
Columbus?
4, WhatIcvel of support does DOH expect CSI to provide to individuals, like Mr, P, who
are in a nursing home or ICF/MR facility? What is the proper intensity of CSI services for
such individuals? [They have not addressed our concern. |

2, M 1955

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. M8 during their meetings:



Mr. Michael Gross
November 18, 2013
Page 3

1. No mention of installing “grab bars” in the bathroom. They only cost $12.00 at WalMart.
[They bave not addressed our concern. Moreover, the Columbus recommendation for
making the bathroom accessible is more complex than merely installing grab bars]

In addition to that issue, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the foliowing concerns
regarding Mr. Ml which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2. What is CSI’s responsibility when their clients’ families also have disabilities, or special
needs, which renders them less than fully capable of caring for the CSI client? In Mr.
MYSRcC:sc, Adult Protective Services {(APS) has found that his family has neglected Mr,
MR and that their home is not clean. [They have not addressed our concern,]

3. Are members of Mr. MR family an appropriate choice to become his guardian? [While
their letter observes that guardianship is pending, it does not make clear who has been
proposed to be the guardian, and whether this proposed person is a family member |

3. 2618

Recently, Ms. Twilllgot a new CSI worker and the new worker has established communication with
Puand her family. In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the
concerns raised by Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Ms. TN during their meetings: '

1. Research possibility of earlier application to DDW to expedite DDW application. [ Actually,
the request is for an earlier “allocation” to the DD Waiver, to begin services]

2. Concerned about sisters who care for 2618. [The letter notes that APS has an open case on
one sister, SR ; however, it did not address our concern about the appropriateness of any of
the other sisters, including @Ik and -, who have also had findings made by APS .|

3. Review family decision to stop PCO. [It is not at all clear from the letter who made the
decision to stop PG PCO services, or with whom CSI is discussing resuming PCO. The
letter makes reference to “sister’s husband,” or “family” four times. Who are these people?
The imprecise documentation, and failure to differentiate between identified family members
is specifically important in this case where Ms. T has many sisters and strong concerns
have been raised with regard to at least one of them (VlllR).]

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Ms,
TR which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

4. We asked Defendants’ counse! to confirm with Sally Faubion of The Arc of New Mexico

(proposed corporate guardian for Ms. TYll) whether Ms. Faubion feels it was appropriate

for Ms. Tl to have moved in with her sister Sll®. |They have not addressed our

concern.|
4, Rt 2882

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Ms. RiRduring their meetings:
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Mr. Michael Gross
November 18, 2013
Page 4

1. What was date 2882 allocated to waiver? |Addressed. However, the underlying issue we
raised was that 1§ll|§ hadn’t yet begun receiving the therapies and some of the services listed
in her DD Waiver service plan. We sought support from CSI to get the services and
therapies started|

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Ms.
R which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:
2. CSI personnel have noted that, due to her advanced age, Ms. REEEER mother has become
unable to properly manage her daughter’s affairs, and that [ 4l necds assistance from CSI o
obtain either a co-guardian or a guardian with full capacity.

5. R 2980

In their letter, Defendants’ counse! characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Ms. REEEE during their meetings:
1. Not enough specificity,

Actually, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel raised the following concerns regarding Ms.
RYEP which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2. What level of support does DOH expect CSl to provide to individuals, like Ms. RUEER and
Mr. Pl who are in a nursing home or ICF/MR facility? What is the proper intensity of
CS1 services for such individuals? [They have not addressed our concern.|

3. What assessment has been performed of Ms. RUEEJR language abilities? [The letter only
observes in an unspecific manner that a speech language and communication assessment was
completed, and that communication strategies were implemented in CHfilllllil 1SP. (Ol
used to speak intelligibly and, when we last visited with her, she was not ex pressing herself
verbally]

4. Inhercontact notes dated 4/9/13, the CSI worker noted that the ICF/MR nurse Wendy “also
reported that she will see her urologist soon and have a CAT scan to follow up on the cyst
she was treated for last year.” We asked whether the cyst is problematic, and why there was
no documentation regarding this in ensuing months. [They have not addressed our concern.]

5. Columbus recommended that Ms. RUE be “‘evaluated by a PT to determine if any therapy
or other intervention is needed to minimize any deterioration of her scoliosis”? Since Ms.
RO was apparently evaluated by a PT on 3/10/11 who recommended pool exercises for
her, we inquired what has happened since with regard to physical therapy for Ms. RUNEER
[In their letter they only note that over two years ago,on 8/10/11, the CSI worker “|e|mailed
ATM to check on status of SLP eval and PT eval.” but there is no further mention of what PT
scrvices are being provided or of any follow-up.]

6. HUE PO CUNER (4502) -DECEASED

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. Ciillduring their meetings:
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i

Want more case management than 4502 received. {Although Defendants are now
acknowledging that CSF’s role is to provide case management, some CSI workers do not
perform typical case management duties for their clients, including Mr. GEl. In the letter,
Defendants provide the same eight pages of CSI’s contact notes for Mr. CUllllB which they
already provided before we expressed our concern to them. CSI worker Doug Baker’s
testimony at the 2013 arbitration showed that he was not providing Mr. Ol with case
management. Pages of documentation of Mr. CHlllllls lack of services and declining health,
without effectivc intervention, is not case managcment. ]

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Mr.
CHllR which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2.

What level of support docs DOH expect CSI to provide to individuals, like Mr. Ol Mr.
P, and Ms R, who are in afacility? What intensity of CSI services and supports
are expected for such an individual? [Like with Mr. Fgiiiif and Ms R, they have not
addressed our concern.}

Did Mr. CUlll® ever receive the recommended “psychiatric evaluation by clinicians
experienced with individuals who have co-existing conditions of intellectual disability and
behavioral health,” as reccommended by Columhus? [They have not addressed our concern.]
Are there expectations or rules for CSI personnel with regard to Columbus recommendations,
and have the rutes been reduced to writing? [They have not addressed our concern.]

. CSI did notimplement the Columbus recommendation to connect Mr. CUlllo the nursing

home ombudsman to obtain advocacy. What does DOH expect CSI workers to do with
regard to individuals in a nursing home and CSI's relationship with the nursing home
ombudsman program? Would Mr. Gl have benefited if CSI had provided a relcase to
the ombudsman and if CS1and the ombudsman had coordinated their efforts? [They have not
addressed our concern.]

Although Mr. CEllll® had both a documented developmental disability as well as a
documented psychiatric diagnosis, he never received the specialized services to which he was
entitled under federal PASRR regulations. What does DOH expect CSI workers to do to
ensure that individuals in nursing homes receive all of the specialized services to which they
are entitled? [They have not addressed our concern. |

Columbus recommended that Mr. CYllllB explore getting out of the nursing home. The
Supreme Court’s Olmstead decision suggests that nursing homes should be a last resort for
individuals with developmental disabilities. What does DOH expect CSI workers todo with
regard Lo assisting an individual residing in a nursing home to move out into the community?
What does DOH expect CSI workers to do to assess the situations of individuals on their
caseloads who reside in a nursing home to determine whether a transition into the community
ts desirable and, if so, how to facilitate such a transition? [They have not addressed our
concern.|

G 6209) -DECEASED
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You were present at the conclusion of the last arbitration session wben the parties discussed at length
the details of Mr. G\l iliness and death, the inhabitable condition of his house, and CSI’s
failure to learn of his death for over a year. We discussed a number of contact notes that described
Mr. GUEIIR s worsening medical condition and inability to access treatment and medication. In
their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as the one concern raised by Plaintiffs’
counsel regarding Mr. Gl during that meeting:
1. No confirmation that referral to UNM dental clinic ever happened. [Although the letter
conflirms that there is “[n]o evidence in contact notes that referral was made prior to
individual’s death.”]

In addition, during the meeting, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised several other far more important
concerns regarding Mr. GUMJlwhich Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2. What docs DOH cxpect CSI workers to do when an individual served by CS1is identified as
having worsening medical issucs and/or is having difficulty obtaining needed medications for
medical issues. When an individual is not getting to doctor’s appointments, should CSI take
any action? {They have not addressed our questions.]

3. When an individual served by CSI is identified as appropriate for PCO services, is it
sufficient for CST to hand that individual the application form to fill out? Isitappropriate for
CSTto assume that APS will assist the individual with the PCO application? [They have not
addressed our concern.]

4. What is the expected role of CSI with respect to the landlord of an individual on their
caseload? For examplc, when Mr. UM s pipes burst and his landlord turned off his
water. [They have not addressed our concern.|

5. What is CSI expected to do when it learns that an individual’s medications have run out?
[They have not addressed our concern.]

6. Under what circumstances does DOH expect CSI personnel to assist the individual to move
from their present living situation to a better living situation? |They have not addressed our
concern. |

7. What does DOH expect CSI personnel to do if they have concerns regarding the individual’s
diminishing capacity to manage their medical care? [They have not addressed our concern.]

8. If the individual cannot be located, as was the case with Mr. Gl what does DOH
expect CSI personnel to do to attempt to locate the individual? | They have not addressed our
concern.}

8. BUE S SR (6252)

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counscl regarding Ms. SUlllllk during their meetings:
1. CS8I accepted guardian’s refusal of assessment and did not ask 6252 if she wanted the
assessment. [Ms. SR has never had a guardian, although one is now being pursued.|

In addition, during the mectings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concems regarding Ms.
SYER v hich Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter;

6
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2. What does CS1 understand to be the authority of an individual’s POA to make decisions for
that individual? |They have not addressed our concera. |

3. What is DOH’s expectation of CS! workers with regard to when the individual with a Power
of Attorney, herself or himself, should be directty consulted regarding tbeir wishes? Does
DOH expect CSI workers to only speak to a person who received the Power of Attorney, or
to speak to the individual who granted the POA? [They have not addressed our concern.|

4. Has DOH'’s Eligibility unit made a determination with regard to Ms. SUllill application for
the DD Waiver? '

9. J.L. 6425

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. BUlR during their mectings:

1. Recommendations for nutritional eounseling and therapies were discussed over the phone.
Should have done face to face discussion. [Itappears that CSI conducted a face-to-face visit
with Mr. BUER regarding these Columbus recommendations following our meetings with
Defendants.)

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Mr.
BWEE which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2. Ttappears that the Columbus recommendation regarding nutrition was closed. What does
that mean, and was that appropriate? [They have not addressed our concern.]

3. What has happened with regard to the Columbus recommendations regarding physical and
occupational therapies? It is not clear whether these recommendations, (0o, have been closed
and, if so, what does that mean and was that appropriate? [They have not addressed our
concern.]

10. 6509

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. Tijilluring their meetings:

1. Why can’t he get allocation letter sooner? {First, the letter is confusing; it states that Mr.
TR “has allocation date of 12/2/2008.” We assume that is his registration date for the
waiting list, but we would like them to confirm this. Second, our issue is that Mr. Tl s
setting is unsafe, and we asked if he could receive expedited DD Waiver services)

2. Medicaid? [We told them that Mr, THElls brother had said that Mr, Tl is back on
Medicaid, and we asked them whether this is correct. They confirmed in the letter that Mr.
TR s Medicaid has been reinstated]

In addition, during the mectings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Mr.

THlJ which Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:
3. Columbus recommended that Mr. Tl s home receive modifications for his accessibility,
and a new roof. CSInotes explain that no funding source has been found for a new roof, but
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no explanation has been given whether CSl assisted Mr. TWlijilllbto install “grah bars” in the
bathroom. They only cost $12.00 at Wal-Mart.

4. Columbus also recommended day services to enable Mr. Tyl to have meaningful
activities. No explanation has been provided why he is not getting any day services.

11. SR PWIR (6590) -DECEASED

In their letter, Delfendants’ counsel characterized the [ollowing as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counse! regarding Ms. Ry during their meetings:
1. Long time frame did 6590 reccive food stamps?

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counse! also raised the following concerns regarding Ms.
Tamlwhich Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2. If an individual is eligible for public bencfits, such as food stamps, what does DOH expect
CSI personnel to do with regard to facilitating that individual receiving those benefils? And,
as in Ms. Plllls case, if the individual has a corporate guardian who is not getting around to
securing those benefits, what is CSI expected to do? [They have not addressed our concern. ]

3. What is the expectation for CSI regarding assigning a CSI worker who speaks the native
language of the individual? For example, Ms. Pl was a native Spanish speaker, with
limited English language skills, but she was not assigned a CSI worker who spoke Spanish,
and it is not clear what attempts, if any, were made by CSI to pair Ms. Fgildwith a Spanish-
speaking CSI worker. [They have not addressed our concern.]

12. 1777

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Ms. Cuilillzduring their meetings:

1. What was issue with PASRR? [Plaintiff asked why CSI entered note re: PASRR. While the
letter states that “PASRR was completed in 5/14/1998,” it is not clear whether the required
second level of review was completed in order to determine whether Ms. OWiliiilld should
receive specialized services in the nursing home. We believe that she is entitled to
specialized services based upon her developmental disability and her mental health issues.|

2. Whalt the schedule was for allocation to the waiver, by region. [The actual issue is, how close
is Ms. CJllll to being able to start DD Waiver services?]

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concems regarding Ms.
CEE which Defendants’ counsel fail to acknowledge in their letter:

3. Has Ms. OWNME received any of the “extensive counseling services” recommended by
Columbus? [The letter does not address this, but Ms. Ol s CSI Service Plan responds
to this, essentially noting that the corporate guardian thinks Ms. CYlilllldoesn’t need the
counseling.|
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4. What does DOH expect CSI workers to do to ensure thal individuals in nursing homes
receive all of the specialized services to which they are entitled? |They have not addressed
our concern. |

5. What level of support does DOH expect CSI to provide to individuals, like Ms. OflliliR, Mr.
(I, M. R, and Ms R, who are in a facility? What intensity of CSI services
and supports are expected for such an individual? [Like with Mr. Pl and Ms T
they have not addressed our concem. |

6. Columbus recommended that Ms, CUSER recei ve DD Waiver services to enable her Lo getg
out of the nursing home. The Supreme Court’s Olmstead dccision suggests that nursing
homes should be a last resort for individuals with developmental disabilities. What does
DOH expect CSI workers to do with regard to assisting an individual residing in a nursing
home to move out into the community? What docs DOH expect CSI workers to do to assess
the situations of individuals on their caseloads who rcside in a nursing home to determine
whether a transition into the community is desirable and, if so, how to facililate such a
transition? [They have not addressed our concern.]

7. We told Defendants that we understand that Ms. OQilll has recently experienced weight
changes, both up and down. Why is she ex periencing these fluctuations in weight? [They
have not addressed our concern.

13. 8012

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Ms. NGl during their meetings:
1. 8012 had her PCO hours reduced. What is appropriate amount of advocacy by CSI worker
when individual has PCO hours reduced? [The letter did not respond to their own
characterization ol our concern]

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Ms.
JERR v hich Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:

2. What is DOH’s ex pectation for CSI involvement when there has been a threatened reduction
in the individual’s PCO hours? Can CSl advise the individual and/or her family or guardian,
can CSI personnel advocate with the managed care company or with the state Medicaid
agency? Plaintiffs want to know whether CSI workers can be authorized to participate in a
Medicaid fair hearing if such participation is requested by the individual/guardian/family?
|They have not addressed our concern in their letter. |

3. What is DOH’s expectation when a particular CSI worker has been rejected by the guardian
of an individual? Will DOH re-assign a case to attempt to eslablish a functional
refationship? [They have not addressed our concern.]

4. What is CSI’s responsihility when their clients’ family member also has a disability or
special needs which interferes with the relationship between CSI and the individual? {They
have not addressed our concern.]

14. 8998) -DECEASED
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In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’* counsel regarding Mr. | gl during their meetings:

1. Did he see MD for lump on neck? [Actually, we asked what CSI did to confirm what the
family had told CS! regarding whether Mr. L{lllPhad been seen by a doctor to properly
evaluate the lump on his neck, including the name and location for any sucb doctor. They
have not addressed our concern. |

In addition, during their meetings, Plaintiifs’ counse! also raised the following concerns regarding
Mr. [ hich Defendants” counsel did acknowledge in their letter:
2. What is DOH’s expectation for CSI personne! when an individual’s family is not willing to
work with the CSI worker? [They have not addressed our concern.]

15, 9440

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Ms. CYijiiduring their meetings:

1. Not enough response to recommendations 3 and 4. [In the letter, with regard to both of these
recommendations, Defendants note that CS1 spoke to TRESCO on 6/24/10 “about providing
day hab services” to Ms. Cgfijili. TRESCO reportedly informed CSI over three years later,
on 9/12/13, that TRESCO’s day hab does not include the areas recommended by Columbus,
“formal training in independence skills, ADL skills, Braille or navigating outdoors.” CS1has
since altempted to contact Ms. QUi s guardian/sister to explain that these services might
be available through the Commission for the Blind, but the sister has reportedly not
responded.]

16. 9815

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel characterized the following as all of the concerns raised by
Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. DYgiiil during their meetings:
1. Has physician completed letter required for Medicaid to make eligibility decision? [Acwally,
our concern is that the CSI worker delayed contacting the doctor for years and has not yet
facilitated the letter that would allow Jgililito get a lift for his wheelchair|

In addition, during the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counsel also raised the following concerns regarding Mr.
BEEES v hich Defendants’ counsel did not acknowledge in their letter:
2. What does DOH expect CSI workers to do when an individual served by CSl s identificd as
having medical issues? When an individual is not getting to doctor’s appointments, should
CSl take any action? What is their protocoi?? [They have not addressed our concern. |
3. What is CSI’s protocol regarding what information should be put in the individual's contact
notes? [They have not addressed our concern. |
4. When does DOH expect CSI workers to make a referral to APS? When a referral has been
made by CSI, which rcsponsibilitics are CSI's and which are APS’?

10
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17. ol Ve (9205D) DECEASED

It is unclear why Mr. Me@iillly was not listed among the thirty-two people who provided Releases.
Nonetheless, Plaintiffs described our concems about Mr. MYyl o Dcfendants during our
meetings. However, Mr. MR was not mentioned in Defendants’ letter.

During the meetings, Plaintiffs’ counscl raised the following concerns rcgarding Mr. Byl

1. What does DOH ex pccl CSI workers to do when an individual scrved by CSIis identified by
CSl as having worsening medical issues?

2. What does DOH expect CSI workers to do to ensure that individuals in nursing homes
receive all of the specialized services to which they are entitled?

3. What level of support does DOH expect CSI to provide to individuals, like Mr. MUl
Ms. Cullllih, Mr. CllllR, Mr. PP and Ms RGN, who are in a facility? What
intensity of CSI services and supports are cxpected for such an individual

4. Columbus recommended that Mr. Myl receive DD Waiver services to enable him to get
out of the nursing home. The Supreme Court’s Qlmstead decision suggests that nursing
homes should be a last resort for individuals with developmental disabilities. What does
DOH expect CSI workers to do with regard to assisting an individual residing in a nursing
home to move out into the community? What does DOH expect CSI workers to do to assess
the situations of individuals on their caseloads who reside in a nursing home to determine
whether a transition into the community is desirable and, if so, how to facilitate such a
transition? [They have not addressed our concern.|

Individuals About Whom Plaintiffs’ Concerns Were Addressed
‘When Defendants Took Action In Response To These Concerns

After discussions during the meetings with Defendants, as noted in their November 6,2013 letter, as
well as the additional information provided in that letter, Plaintiffs have no remaining questions or
concerns regarding the situations of the remaining 13 individuals:

1. DullliR gl (2785)

In their letter, Defendants’ addressed the concems raised by Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. Bl
during their meetings as follows:
1. Did CSl1alk to ISD office to confirm that 2785 is recetving all food stamps that he is entitled
to? {Addressed.|
2. What was entry about social security on 8/28/20137 [Addressed.]

2. H 6009

In their tetter, Defendants’ addressed the concerns raised by Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding Mr. Higiii
during their meetings as follows:

"
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1. Follow-up on dental and employment options. [Addressed.}
3. 6657

In their letter, Defendants’ counsel addressed the concerns raised hy Plaintiffs’ counsel regarding
Ms. G during their meetings as follows:

1. Mealiime plan? [Addressed.]

2. Weightissues? [Addressed.]

3. Has she been scen by a psychiatrist? [Addressed.]

Individuals Who Are Not On The CSI Caseload Because They Are Enrolled In A
Waiver Program And Did Not Receive A Guardianship Recommendation From Columbus

1. P LR (1011W)

2. Gulllt GEE(2263DE)
3. R HER(3121W)

4. OuERBYEED VEER (3155W)
5. WD KR (3539W)

6. KEPCOER (1951W)

7. REpRHEI5972W)

8. DEEEPAGEA.(7753W)

9. WEllRHEER (7951W)
10. CONENNS NG (7980 W)
11. HEEEPHYEER (8224W)

12. SUNER LR (8435W)

13. CUlER FIE (8754W)

Conclusion

Among the fifteen people we are in contact with who are eligible for assistance from the CSI project,
anumber still have Columhus recommendations that have not been fulfiiled, and one is still waiting
for her Columbus assessment. Since the Columbus recommendations were generally issued between
two and three years ago, that failure is very concerning. However, the more troubling problem is that
the “assistance provided by the CSI project”” has been less than adequate for all twenty of the people
whose records we have received, and most of those eligible individuals have received very poor case
management support from CS1. Of the five people who have died, none of them received assistance
from the CSI project that was anywhere near the case management support required by the settlement
agreement.

Going forward, it is vital that DOH clearly establish in writing its expectations for its CS1 workers.

Only if CSI workers receive clear guidance about how to perform their jobs, and sufficient training
and supervision, will Defendants’ commitments be fulfitled.

12



Mr. Michael Gross
November 18,2013
Page 13

Accordingly, we reiterate below the topics which we’ve requested DOH to address in writing, to
establish for CSI workers the expectations they should fulfill when providing assistance to the 200
surviving people who are entitled to assistance from the CSI project pursuant to the settlement
agrecment.

At a minimum, DOH should clarify in writing its expectations regarding the following:

1.

N

10.

11,

What level of support does CSI provide to individuals who are in a nursing home or ICF/MR
facility? What is the proper intensity of CSI services for such individuals?

For clients in facilities, are there expectations or rules for CSI workers with regard to
Columbus recommendations, and have the rules been reduced to writing?

What do CSI workers do to ensure that individuals in nursing homes receive all of the
specialized services to which they are entitled?

What do CSI workers do with regard to assisting an individual residing in a nursing home to
move out into the community? What do CS! workers do to assess the situations of clients
who reside in a nursing home to determine whether a transition into the community is
desirable and, if 50, how to facilitate such a transition?

When do CSI workers make a referral to APS? When a referral has been made by CSI,
which responsibilities are CSI’s and which are APS'?

What do CS1 workers do when an individual served by CSl is identified as having worsening
medical issues and/or is having difficulty obtaining needed medications for medical issues?

When an individual is not getting to doctor’s appointments, should CSI take any action?
What does CSI do when it learns that an individual’s medications have run out?

What do CSI workers do if they have concerns regarding the individual’s diminishing
capacity to manage their medical care? »

When an individual served by CSI is identified as appropriate for a particular program or
service (e.g. PCO services,or food stamps), is it sufficient for CSI to hand that individual the
application form to fill out?

What is CSI’s involvement when there has been a threatened reduction in the individual’s
PCO hours? Can CS! advise the individual and/or her family or guardian? Can CSI
personnel advocate with the managed care company or with the state Medicaid ageney? Can
CSI workers be authorized to participate in a Medicaid fair hearing if such participation is
requested by the individual/guardian/family?

13
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12,

13.

14,

16.

17.

What is CSI’s role with respect to the landiord of an individual on their caseload? (For
example, when Mr, GUEER's pipes burst and his landlord turned off his water.) Under
what circumstances do CSI personnel assist the individual to move from their present living
situation to a better living situation?

If the individual cannot be located, as was the case with Mr. G, what do CSI
personnel do to attempt to locate the individual?

Whalt is CSI’s responsibility when their clients’ families or guardians also have disabilities or
special needs which renders them less than fully capable of caring for the CSI client?

. What does CSI understand to be the authority of an individual’s Power of Attorney to make

decisions for that individual? What do CSI workers do with regard to when the individual
with a POA, herself or himself, should be directly consulted regarding their wishes? Do CSI
workers only speak to a person who received the Power of Attorney, or do they speak to the
individual who granted the POA?

What is CSI's protocol regarding what information should be putin the individual’s contact
notes? '

What does CSI do regarding assigning a CSI worker who speaks the native language of the
individual?

Once DOH clarifies how CSI workers should do their jobs, then DOH should adequately train its CSI
workers, and also provide them with the supervision and support they require to ensure that the 200
surviving members of the proposed class in the JM litigation receive the “assistance from the DOH
Community Serviees Integration project” that was promised to them on January 8, 2010,

Very truly yours,

Deter Cubra

Peter Cubra

cc w/ encl, via email only:

Jetry Walz (jerrvawalz@walzandassociates.com
Kathy Kunkel (Kathy_Kunkel@walzandassociates.com)
Anne Alexander (AAlexander@walzandassociates com
Cathy Stevenson (cathy.stevenson@state nm.us
Wendy Corry (Wendy.Cor
Kathy Baker (Kathy.Baker @slate.nm.us)

J. Gabrielle Sanchez-Sandoval (Gabrielle.SanchezSandoval @ state.nm.us)
Plaintiffs’ co-counsel
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March 14, 2014

Michael Gross, Arbitrator

Michael A. Gross Law LLC

1911 Serpentine Circle §

Saint Petersburg, Florida 33712

via email: mike@mikegrosslaw.com

Re:  Foley v. DOH, Defendants’ Response to Plaintiffs’ Sixth Arbitration Demand

Dear Arbitrator Gross:

Below please find Defendants’ response to Plaintiffs’ Sixth Arbitration Demand.
Plaintiffs’ narrative, history and overview are factually inaccurate and based on unfounded
assumptions, Defendants will address those assumptions and factual errors. Defendants will then
address the allegations madé by Plaintiffs in their arbitration demand. Defendants are prepared to
present documentary and testimonial evidence to support their responses.

I Introduction

Plaintiffs’ Introductory paragraphs contain numerous misleading statements. For
example, Plaintiffs’ state that “five (5) of the 32 did not get specific recommendations,” or, for
those individuals who did receive specific recommendations, that “a majority of those people

have still not received the benefit of one or more specific recommendations made by Columbus,

EXHIBIT

P4
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although years has [sic] gone by since those recommendations were made.” [Pltfs.” Sixth
Arbitration Demand p. 1]

Actually, the five individuals referenced in Plaintiffs Introductory paragraph did not
receive agny recommendations from Columbus following their Decisional Capacity Assessments,
and the majority of individuals who “have not received the benefit of one or more specific
recommendations” declined, had a guardian or substitute decision-maker decline, or were
ineligible for a program due to other reasons. To portray the Defendants as noncompliant when a
program or service is declined or the individual is ineligible, particularly when Plaintiffs are in
possession of the facts, goes beyond advocacy to unacceptable.

Plaintiffs’ Introductory paragraphs allege that CSI workers have failed to fulfill the
requirements of the Settlement Agreement in two ways, First, by not effecting each and every
recommendation of the Columbus reviewer for every former resident, and second, that most of
those individuals also have not received the assistance from the CSI project that they were
promised. [Pltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand p. 1] Although this information is not new,
Defendants will review here the scope of the Settlement Agreement, the CSI “project”, and the
CSI workers’ authority, resources, and practice.

A. The Settlement Agreement

The Settlement Agreement provided that the Columbus Organization would perform two
assessments, a Needs Assessment and a Decisional Capacity Assessment to former residents of
the state’s institutions for the developmentally disabled. Both assessments were optional and

offered to the former residents, their guardians or Power of Attorney. The Needs Assessment did
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not make determinations of eligibility for any program nor did the Decisional Capacity
Assessment determine an individual’s competence. The resulting recommendations were
suggestions, not mandates, and did not necessarily reflect the individual’s or family’s cultural
values, preferences or interests. At times the recommendations were based on information that
was later determined to be inaccurate, Where relevant, Defendants will identify the cases where
these situations arose.

The Settlement Agreement was structured to provide former residents with an
opportunity to meet with the Columbus representatives, to be assessed for possible referral to the
DD waiver, the Personal Care Program or other appropriate programs if the results of the
screenings and assessments identify services the former resident may need, to receive a
Decisional Capacity Assessment for possible referral to the Office of Guardianship where the
individual’s capacity would be determined as defined by law, and to be visited at least quarterly
by a member of CSI. |

Specific language in the agreement made it clear that former residents would be assisted
by CSI in their applications for any program; however, each individual would be considered for
eligibility in accordance with program guidelines, eligibility, criteria and available funding
subject to the agencies respective statutory and regulatory responsibilities. Both parties were

aware that the waiting list for services under the DD Waiver was approximately eight (8) years at
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the time of the settlement. To support those who needed more assistance in their daily activities,
Defendants agreed to offer each person on the waiting list the Personal Care Option.’
B. CSI Project

Plaintiffs allege that Defendants have not complied with the Settlement Agreement as
they have failed to provide the assistance from the CSI project. Plaintiffs provide no specific
complaints and state that they are reserving this argument for a future date. In this response,
Defendants will include their efforts to provide answers to the questions posed by Plaintiffs
regarding issues outside the Columbus recommendations, as those questions took up much of the
meetings and communications with Plaintiffs’ counsel in September, October, and November
2013, and were part of the Tables provided to Plainfiffs in January 2014,

The CSI project is a term describing state efforts to identify, organize, contact, conduct
outreach, provide eduéation, facilitate applications and provide a community based state
employee as liaison to those former residents of the state’s three institutions for the
developmentally disabled who fall within the terms of the Settlement Agreement. The CSI
project preceded the Settlement Agreement, and some of the current CSI workers assisted in the
efforts to locate the former residents. Those CSI workers also performed face to face visits and
facilitated applications to public programs years before the formal agreement.

The CSI unit is a part of the Developmental Disabilities Supports Division. CSI workers

have access to experts in the field of developmental disability. There are no specific services

! The Medicaid PCO program is designed to permit a person to live in his or her home rather than a nursing facility,
and to maintain or increase personal independence. Personal Care attendants provide a range of services to
individuats who need help with activities of daily living because of a disability or functional limitations.
www.nmbiac.com/PDF/Final_PCO_tip_sheet_012810.pdf
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provided by CSI other than those described in the Settlement Agreenient; to visit as needed and
to assist with referrals to other programs as requested by the individual. As has been discussed
with Plaintiffs on multiple occasions, the assistance provided by CSI is individual specific. Not
every former resident is interested in the assistance offered by CSI. Plaintiffs’ allege that there is
highly variable performance among CSI workers. Defendants dispute this and assert that it is the
variable nature of each individual and their circumstances that result in highly variable outcomes.
C. The DD Waiver

The services offered by the DD Waiver are an important backdrop to understanding the
construction of the Settlement Agreement. Information regarding the scope of the services
available, the number of individuals surrounding tﬁe individual on the wavier, and the role of the
case manager are essential background to understanding the scope of the January 8, 2010,
Settlement Agreement. As stated in the first sentence of paragrap'h 3(a) of the Settlement Outline,
Columbus was to presumptively “exciude all individuals who are currently receiving services
under the DD waiver, the D&E waiver, and the medically fragile waiver.” [Settlement
Agreement Y3 (a)] This was because Defendants administered the waivers referred to in 3 (a) of
the Settlement Agreement and understood the breadth of services already provided to the
individuals who were served by the waivers. Greater detail regarding the services provided under
the DD waiver will be described as appropriate in the response below.
D. Plaintiffs’ Overview

Defendants object to Plaintiffs’ allegation that “it seems certai_n.that, due to the advocacy

and monitoring Plaintiffs’ counsel have provided those twenty-seven people, they have gotten
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superior attention from CSI and Defendant, compared to the hundreds of other people who are
also entitled to the benefits of the Settlement Agreement, with whom we are not in contact”.
[Pltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand, p. 2]

For most of the 32 individuals, the information provided to Plaintiffs since Januad 2013
has not changed. Defendants reported monthly through the service status reports on CSI efforts
to meet the terms of the Settlement Agreement regarding all individuals who were eligible for
the benefits of the Settlement Agreement. In addition, the grid provided in January 2013,
documented the dates of notice, the date of each Needs Assessment, the date of each Decisional
Capacity Assessment and whether or not there were recommendations related to those
assessments. Plaintiffs have the dates that any individual was referred to the Office of
Guardiaﬁship and the outcome of those referrals. Plaintiffs have the information on anyone
referred for a POA or Health Care Decision maker and the outcome of those referrals. Plaintiffs
have the dates of each individual’s referral to PCO and the outcome of those referrals, as well as
the reason any individual was not receiving PCO. In January 2013, Defendants also provided
narrative reports on every individual’s Other Recommendations. Defendants continue to provide
Plaintiffs with monthly visitation reports on all individuals eligible for this benefit under the

- Settlement Agreement.

Defendants have been producing the same information to Plaintiffs regarding the status of
completion of the Columbus recommendations since the grid was produced in January 2013.
This information was repeated in the Follow up to Status Conference Held September 6, 2013,

the informal discussions held with Plaintiffs in September and October 2013, and in the Tables
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provided in January 2014. Individual lives are dynamic, and there may be amendments to the
information occasionally as the individual’s circumstances change, however, as the documents
demonstrate, the majority of the follow up information has not changed.

As noted above, CSI cannot impose the Columbus recommendations on individuals with
capacity, or on guardians. In every case where a recommendation has not been effected, CSI has
provided the explanation, Defendants strongly object to Plaintiffs’ repeated representation that
individual or family decisions represent CSI failure to implement Columbus recommendations,
and further suggest that.Plaintiffs make such repeated representations to create the appearance of
noncompliance where in fact it does not exist.

II. Recommendations Deemed “Not Completed” per Plaintiffs; Recommendations

Deemed “Completed” By Defendant; Recommendations Plaintiffs Deemed Not
Completed In Timely Fashion

Plaintiffs’ Sixth Arbitration Demand, Section I1I p. 4 seems to indicate that Defendants
have stated that recommendations are not completed. Defendants object to these
misrepresentations, and attach the documents provided to Plaintiffs in the past year as evidence
of Defendants” actual responses.

1. R I_L- REll-eceived one recommendation. CSI completed their obligations
under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs August 15,
2013 and January 14, 2014] [l REEreceived a Needs Assessment and was referred to the
waiver by Columbus on August 6, 2010. CSI facilitated the applicatfon and continued to visit
[l and provide assistance until she was allocated to the waiver. She was expedited to the

waiver on August 30, 2012, Although there was no referral for a guardianship evaluation, CSI
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assisted in the appointment of a guardian.
The waiver provides an array of residential, habilitation, employment, therapeutic, and

family support services. (http://wwwnmbhealth.org/ddsd/developmentaldisabilities/programdd

waiverpgl.htm.) Each individual on the DD waiver is surrounded by an interdisciplinary team
(IDT). The IDT is responsible for the development of the individual service plan (ISP) and for
identifying the agencies and individuals responsible for providing the services and supports
identified in the ISP. The IDT shall consist of the following members: the individual with the
developmental disability, a case manager, the guardian, (if applicable), a helper (friend,
housemate, family member, teacher, co-worker, current or former employee of an agency with
which the individual has had contact, foster grandparent, or any other person from the
individual’s circle of relatives, friends and acquaintances). NMAC 7.26.5.7A(2). The case
manager is an independently funded 'professional responsible for service coordination to
individuals with developmental disability on the developmental disabilities waiver; the case
manager must be external to, and independent from the community service provider agency.
NMAC 7.26.5.7.(2)(b). “The Case Manager serves as an advocate for the individual, and is
responsible for the development of the Individual Service Plan (ISP) and the ongoing monitoring
of the provision of services included in the ISP.” DD Waiver Service Standards, November 1,
2012, revised April 23, 2013, Case Management Services, p. 49. http://nmhealth.org/ddsd.
Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, [k REMBis no longer followed by
CSI as once she obtained a case manager, the responsibility for coordination of services,

specifically those recommended by Columbus rested with the case manager. CSI provided the



Michael Gross, Esq.
March 14, 2014
Page 9 of 30

Columbus recommendations to the case manager who indicated that the IDT team would take
themn into consideration. Plaintiffs’ Arbitration Demand states that Plaintiffs requested support
from CSI to get the services and therapies started. [See Pltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand, p.5)
CSI has no authority to coordinate the care of an individual on the waiver. The CSI worker did
continue to visit and assisted [¥illl following her allocation to the waiver until the case manager,
Jason Hewitt, was fully in charge. Plaintiffs may exercise the Request for Regional Office
~ Intervention (RORI) described in the Settlement Agreement. []3a] The RORI system is the
standard DDSD mechanism, familiar to the Plaintiffs, to obtain assistance for individuals on the
DD Waiver as sought by Plaintiffs in their complaint.

2. T G TOMER CUWNER rcceived three recommendations. CSI
comﬁleted two of the three recommendations before Mr. GUNEEB died. [See Attached
documents provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014] Mr. Gl received
both a Needs Assessment and a Decisional Capacity Assessment on January 10, 2011. There
were no recommendations related to his capacity, and Mr, Gl was his own guardian, CSI
assisted Mr. GEElJJR in re-establishing his SSI benefits. Concern regarding Mr. Gl s
living arrangements led CSI to make a referral to Adult Protective Services (APS). APS took Mr.
GEEEER to the doctor to as part of the application for PCO. The physician did not hospitﬁlize or
otherwise intervene in Mr. GUlllijills life. The CSI service plan from 2011 states “CSI will
monitor referral to UNM Dental Clinic for 6209 however, Mr. GijijilJldied before the referral

was completed.
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3. M TE Mr. TG received one recommendation; to. name a Health Care
Decision Maker. This recommendation was completed 2/8/2011 when Mr. TNllllllis brother
identified himself as medical power of attorney for Mr. il [Sce Attached documents
provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014] There were several embedded
recommendations that describe the DD Waiver services Mr. il might benefit from once he
is allocated to the waiver. Although Mr. Tl is not yet eligible for any of the waiver services
suggested, CSI has attempted to conﬁect Mr. Wl with similar services through other funding,

For example, CSI attempted to locate a service that would provide Independent Living
services. The efforts CSI undertook to identify funding and locate a provider for this service is
documented in CSI contact notes. Unfortunately there is no provider in the area where Mr.
- Tl lives. Mr. \Willlawas not interested in exploring employment but agreed to explore day
habilitation. He began attending two days a week in November 2013. APS responded to a report
in September 2013 that Mr. Tyl did not have food in his home, was not getting his money
and was running away. Per APS these reports were not substantiated. There is a pending referral
for guardianship at the Office of Guardianship (OOG). There is no update from OOG as to the
status of the referral. CSI continues to talk to Mr. TEjll’s family (who has caréd for Mr,
TR for many years) as to their interest in becoming guardian or POA. Tﬁe family continues
to consider this request. CSI is very involved with Mr. "l and his family and will continue
to provide support until Mr. Tl is allocated to the DD Waiver.

Plaintiffs complain that CSI did not ascerta.in Mr. TEljl s current status on the DD

waiver waiting list until 2/26/2013. [See Pitfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand p. 11] Mr. [
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was informed that he was not a match for service on 3/12/2010 because he lacked a DD
diagnosis and was therefore not a match under federal and state definitions, CSI worked with Mr.
TWE and his family to have a TEASC evaluation performed by a neuropsychiatrist to revisit
the determination of developmental disability. The evaluation took place August 23, 2010. On
September 7, 2012, Dr. Campbell sent releases of information to various parties/hospitals to
obtain more information related to Mr. T’ s developmental disability status. The TEASC
evaluation was received by DDSD on October 17, 2012. The DD Waiver evaluation was
completed with the family the next month, and was hand delivered to the eligibility unit on
December 12, 2012. Mr. Rl was not determined to be a match for service until 2/26/2013.
However, his earlier registration date of 12/2/2008 will be used by DDSD to determine his
allocation date. This recommendation follow up was not untimely, and further, demonstrates
CSI’s persistence and commitment to assist individuals to establish eligibility.

4, Fgh TEEED Ms. THEP rcceived six recommendations. All of By T
recommendations have been completed by CSI. The pending guardianship is the responsibility of
the Office of Guardianship; however the sister currently caring for Ms. TWlll has been
cooperative and has sought guardianship since August 2013. [See Attached documents provided
to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014] Ms. TWlllls family did not permit CSI
contact in the first few years of CSI efforts. APS has been contacted multiple times. In August of
2013, APS reported to CSI that APS had tried to meet with family many times without success.
This is consistent with the efforts of CS1 to meet with Ms. TR and her family. On August 15,

2013, APS and CSI made a home visit together but were still unable to meet with Ms. Tiilllle
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CSI efforts to locate Ms. Tl are well documented in 'the contact notes. On August 19, 2013
CSI learned that Ms, TNl was now living with a different sister. CSI was able to meet with
the sisters and Ms. TWElA. On 8/21/2013, CSI reviewed all the Columbus recommendations with
Ms. TWllR and her family. The 8/21/2013 note reads as follows:

Met with B and two of her sisters, EEiis3R-d Ul G E®

stays with up to 4 of her sisters. Lately she has been primarily staying with
@ as she is at home more than other who are working... B presents as
well groomed wither hair done, clean clothing and nice appearance. She was
quiet but would answer CSI questions with 1-2 work responses. Went over
Columbus recommendations with the 3 ladies. Exgibs toe/foot and walker-
she had fallen several years ago when assmt was done and at that time but it
was discontinued after she was well. She did use a walker for some time but
for at least a year or so she has been ambulating without assistive devices
and does just fine. Bl was walking within the home during this visit. She
said she does use the handrails when on steps. Family feels there is no
further need to follow up on her previous injury or PT as this was
accomplished. Asked the sisters and Pgif they felt she needed any
ambulation devices such as a walker and they felt she did not. Discussed
DDW application and at this time the family is not interested in completing
the application. Talked about what P does during the day and inquired if
they were interested in some daytime service programs if we could find one.
The sisters thought it would be a good idea. They then pointed to a tin
butterfly on the dining room wall saying that Pigilsmade it years ago when
she was in a day time program. Talked about the obstacles with funding but
CS1 will look into what may be available and get back to Sarah on this.
Talked about recommendation for behavioral consuit regarding
desensitization strategies. Both sisters have no idea why this would be
recommended. They felt P does just fine and is not stressed and has
normal reactions, not over-reactions in public. They did not see a need for
this and do not want to pursue. Talked about guardianship need. Wl
volunteered to pursue legal guardianship and requested CS1 get her the
information to start the process. Other discussion included that EXl needs to
get dentures and they tried to have her fitted but without success. They will
try again. Not sure if Bllawill tolerate if dentures are not a perfect fit and
that was the initial problem. E@ was diagnosed with diabetes about a year
ago when seeing her physician. Since then she has reportedly went from 200
# to 150# via diet. She is not on any medications for diabetes as of yet. Bl
sometimes has urinary accidents when she is asleep at night. Slll#has been
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waking EgR up once in the night to use the bathroom. They are also having
her wear a brief at night. Talked about the cost and suggested they talk to
doctor at next visit to get a script so Medicaid can cover the cost of the
briefs. Her physician is in Shiprock. Sister’s inquired about what if Dl
becomes ill and needs to be in the hospital overnight or something... will
her Medicaid insurance pay for that? Informed them that Medicaid should
cover those types of Medical expenses. ER is not getting food stamps but
JE thought she might go an apply soon to see if she can get that benefit.
JER stated that she thought about applying for PCO a couple of years ago
but did not follow through. E§R is not receiving. They do not think they
want to pursue at this time with PCO. On 8/22/2013 CSI explored options in
Farmington via internet and telephone for day services (Dungarvin, PMS
Project Shield, High Desert Family Services; private pay costs would be
$2.58 per 15 minute interval) without waiver funding in place unable to find
a DD specific provider unless family is able to private pay. The Farmington
Senior Center may be an option as Eg@Bis a senior based on her age. On 10/9
/2013 CSI talked with ¥l and Fgisabout the senior center. They do have
the contact information to go and check it out at their discretion.

Since that visit in August 2013, CSI has been successful in assisting the family to apply
for and receive PCO services. Ms. Tl family applied for the DD Waiver, and Ms. Tl
was a match for service as of 1/9/2014. B has a knee brace and crutches, and although her
sister Sl wants E@ to get an x-ray of her knee to check it out more thoroughly, so far her
doctor disagrees with this request. WllB has been waiting to hear from the Office of
Guardianship as to her interest in becoming guardian however, there has been no contact from
the Office of Guardianship. The application for guardianship was submitted by CSI on
9/23/2011. Since October 2013, CSI has made four attempts to follow up on the guardianship
referral. CSI’s last information on this issue was that a new attorney had been assigned by QOG
February 14, 2014,

Plaintiffs further allege that CSI failed to complete the recommendations for Ms. Tl

in a timely fashion. [See PIltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand pp. 10, 11.] The Columbus
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recommendations do not bind families. The obligation incurred by the Settlement Agreement is
for CSI to follow up with families on the suggestions made by Columbus. The documents
provided by Defendants to Plaintiffs clearly illusirate the efforts of CSl to establish meaningful
contact with the family of Ms. Till® CSI and APS have only been successful in making
progress with Ms. TWlllW's family on the Columbus recommendations in the past year, when
Ms. TWll went to live with her sister Y. While CSI has followed up on the
recommendations to the best of their ability, there is a pending guardianship application.
Pursuant to CSI practice, the Columbus recommendations will be provided to any appointed
guardian, and reviewed at that time.

5. Humy Peml CWEEs Mr. CHE received three recommendations. CSI completed
their obligations under the Settlement Agreement [See Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs
August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014] The first recommendation was to review Mr. N
PASRR evaluation’ A new PASRR, including required Level II screening, was conducted
7/23/2012. The determination was that Mr. CHllllP was not a candidate for specialized services
due to his medical condition.

Pléintiffs complain that the PASRR was not conducted until 7/30/2012, however, the
recommendation was to have Mr. Ol current PASRR reviewed. [See Pltfs.’ Sixth

Arbitration Demand, p. 11] On 11/16/2010, CSI confirmed with the Director of Nursing and

? Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) is a federal requirement to help ensure that individuals are
not inappropriately placed in nursing homes for long term care. PASRR requires that 1) all applicants to a Medicaid-
certified nursing facility be evaluated for mental illness and/or intellectual disability; 2} be offered the most
appropriate setting for their needs (in the community, a nursing facility, or acute care settings); and 3) receive the
services they need in those settings. www.medicaid.gov



Michael Gross, Esq.
March 14, 2014
Page 15 of 30

case manager that the review of Mr. GBI existing PASRR had been conducted.

The second recommendation stated that Mr. ik could benefit from support from an
advocate independent from his family in voicing his preferences regarding his living situation.
and in reviewing his due process options. On 8/21/2012 the state Ombudsman came to the
nursing home, observed Mr, Gl and according to the Director of Nursing, the ombudsman
did not find anything wrong with Mr. Sl placement.’ Both Plaintiffs and CSI contacted the
statc Ombudsman in response to this recommendation,

The third recommendation described the DD Waiver services that should be afforded to
Mr. G, once he was allocated to the DD Waiver. There were extensive efforts by CSI Doug
Baker, CSI supervisor Chris Futey, Plaintiffs’ counsel and agents, Defense counsel, and the
DDSD Mi Via program staff to obtain the services described in the third recommendation. These
efforts are well documented and too lengthy to be included here. Although Mr. Ol was on
the waiting list for the DD Waiver, he would not have been allocated for some time. All parties
assisted in applying for the Mi Via waiver, for which he was eligible as a nursing home resident.
Mi Via is designed for participants who have disabilities to manage their own services and
supports within an approved plan and budget. With the assistance of a Consultant, participants
develop their own Service and Su_pport Plan (SSP) to meet their functional, medical, and social

needs. Participants decide what services they need and how to spend their Mi Via budget. The

3 The New Mexico Ombudsman Program is a tesident-centered program designed to advocate for the civil and
human rights of individuals living in long-term care facilities. Ombudsmen provide a voice to vulnerable adults who
might otherwise go unheard. Through regular visits to nursing homes and assisted living facilitics, Ombudsmen
assist residents by advocating for their rights, investigating complaints, helping to resolve concerns, and ensuring
they receive the quality of care they deserve. Services are free, confidential and provided statewide by more than
100 certified volunteers and 12 state staff.nmeging.state.nm.us/Long_Term_Ombudsman.aspx
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cooperative effort to establish Mi Via services was underway however, there were concerns
expressed by all parties that Mr. CHllllR was too medically comb!ex to live safely on the Mi Via
waiver, and he died before the issue was resolved.

6. REs HE Mr. HEreceived one recommendation. CSI completed their obligations
under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs August 15,
2013 and January 14, 2014]

Mr. HElR is on the waiver, and he received his Decisional Capacity Assessment on
September 24, 2010. There was no referral for a guardian. His only recommendation read
“Referral for assistance from CSI/DDSD to obtain appointment of a health care decision maker
to assist Mr. HIl with medicai decisions.” For each individual on the wavier that received a
Columbus recommendation following their Decisional Capacity Assessment, the CSI supervisor
submitted a Request for Regional Office Intervention (RORI). The purpose of the RORI was to
have the appropriate DDSD regional office convey the Columbus recommendation to the
individual’s IDT team and have the IDT team consider the Columbus recommendation. On
October 10, 2011, CSI received a response to the RORI previously submitted to the IDT team
supporting Mr. HEll The IDT team responded that “5972’s [RURHEEEN brother is his health
caré decision maker. If brother is not able, 5972’s [REJk] aunt who lives in Artesia would serve
as 5972’s [F] Health Care Decision Maker.” In January 2014, CSI was informed that the
aunt in Artesia had recently died. The current CSI supervisor informed Mr. Hille case manager
that the aunt had been identified as a backup to Mr. HiilPs brother and requested that the team

revisit the recommendation. The IDT team did consider the issue as requested in an IDT meeting
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in February 2014, and reported to CSI that Mr. Hills team believes his current supports are
sufficient, however they will continue to review his need for this type of support in the future.

7. BulEn SGEEED Ms. SGNER did not receive any assessments as her POA declined
the assessments on August 3, 2010 following receipt of notice. [See Attached documents
provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs object to Defendants use of the term “guardian” to describe her POA. CSI
correctly identified the surrogate decision maker as her Power of Attorney in the original service
plan provided to Plaintiffs. CSI is in possession of the notarized durable power of attorney signed
by Ms. SSNEME This document identifies Suilime SENEER:s the true and lawful attorney for
Ms. SEEEEER to “execute all or any of the following acts, deeds and things: to manage and
conduct all my affairs of every kind and nature, specifically, but not limited to, executing all
instruments deemed necessary, firms, corporations, states or the United States...giving my sﬁid
attorney full power and authority to do everything whatsoever necessary.” [See Durable Power
of Attorney, attached] Defendants have explained to Plaintiffs on several occasions that CSI
bases their decisions as to the authority of an individual’s POA to make decisions for that
individual on the authority contained in the language of the document. CSI understood Ms.
SEEEK POA to have the express authority to decline the assessments offered by Columbus.

Defendants have attached the documents previously provided to Plaintiffs that record the
other services and programs CSI was successful in facilitating for Ms. Sull@@® including

facilitating the application and establishing eligibility for the DD waiver.
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8. Japl PUIR Ms. PF@ had six recommendations. CSI completed their obligations
under the Settlement Agreement. [lSee Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs August 15,
2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs’ Sixth Arbitration Demand identifies two of the six recommendations on p. 7 as
not completed. First, Plaintiffs object that CSI deferred to Ms. PRl s caretaker before a guardian
was appointed. Ms, R received a referral for guardianship August 17, 2010. CSI facilitated
this referral to the Office of Guardianship as required by the Settlement Agreement. The
corporate guardian, Quality of Life, was not appointed until October 4, 2011. CSI spoke to the
corporate guardian on 8/22/2012 and discussed the Columbus recommendations, including the
recommendation to get a new physician and determining whether Ms. Pilll® had any children.
CSI called the ;:orporate guardians again October 31, 2012, to see if they had followed up on the
Columbus recommendations. On November 11, 2012, CSI called Melinda Patton, the owner of
Quality of Life guardianship agency, to alert her to the lack of follow up by the appointed
guardians and to discuss the Columbus recommendations. On November 6, 2012, CSI received
an email from the guardian indicating that he would follow up on all recommendations.

On July 17, 2012, Ms. Rl visited her new physician. There was no referral for a
swallow study by this physician.

CSI discussed the issue of children with the long time caretakers in October of 2010. At
that time, the caretakers acknowledged that Ms, il sometimes stated she had a daughter but
never gave a name. The family, who had been caring for Ms. Rl for over 30 years, stated that

they had no idea how to proceed to locate a possible daughter. On June 10, 2013, CSI revisited
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the issue of Ms. Pgglis children with the family. At this time, the family stated that Ms. Rl
referred to her stuffed animals as children. Defendants have no data to support Plaintiff’s newly
asserted allegation that “for years they stated that Ms. Rl DID have children and that Ms. (il
asked to find them.” CSI was unable to obtain any reliable information regarding children and
Ms. Rillp

Defendants assert that CSI did meet the terms of the Settlement Agreement. All of Ms.
Puls recommendations were completed. CSI worked through the corporate guardians to
complete the recommendations. The fact that there was a delay in appointing a guardian, and
then poor response from the appointed guardian, is not evidence of CSI noncompliance with the
Settlement Agreement.

9, DUEED CUBEER Ms. CEE rcceived three recommendations. CSI has completed
their obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Aftached documents provided to
Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs’ Sixth Arbitration Demand identifies one recommendation as not completed.
“7777 should receive extensive counseling services. She may well have PTSD as well as
depression. This should be initiated as soon as possible.” [Pltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand, p. 7]
CSI has completed their obligations under the Settlement Agreement.[See Attached documents
provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs’ refusal to recognize the authority of the corporate guardian to make a decision
regarding the recommendation for counseling for Ms. (ulillilis not evidence of noncompliance

by CSI. Plaintiffs suggest that CSI should address the refusal by the corporate guardian with the
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Developmental Disabilities Planning Council. The corporate guardian is appointed to make all
major decisions regarding the incapacitated person's care and safety. Both Plaintiffs and CSI
have respected the authority of other guardians to accept or reject the Columbus
recommendations, and guardians are not bound by any particular recommendation just because
they consented to the assessnﬁent.

10. W“I—_ Ms. Hllllp received two Columbus recommendations. CSI
has completed their obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents
provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

For each individual on the wavier that received a Columbus recommendation following
their Decisional Capacity Assessment, the CSI supervisor submitted a Request for Regional
Office Intervention (RORI). The purpose of the RORI was to have the appropriate DDSD
regional office convey the Columbus recommendation to the individual’s [DT team and have the
IDT team consider the Columbus recommendation. The CSI supervisor sent the RORI to the
appropriate regional office on January 26, 2011 regarding both the recommendation for a Health
Care Decision Maker and to have Ms. HWlllll sister appointed POA. On April 26, 2011, the
IDT indicated to the CSI supervisor that the team elected to invoke the New Mexico Health Care
Decisions -Act and declined to pursue POA as Ms Hlllly's sister is very involved with the
team.

Following Defendants’ January exchange of information with Plaintiffs, Defendants have

contacted both the case manager and the sister of Ms. Hiillie. Ms. U sister has agreed
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that the time has come to make more permanent arrangements for Ms. Hiullllllls care and will
explore POA. The CSI supervisor has mailed the relevant documents to Ms. HIMN s sister.

11. R JENEER Ms. S rcceived three recommendations. CSI has
completed their obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents provided
to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs” Arbitration Demand rejects CSI’s response to the Columbus recommendation
#2, “CSI should assist the family in obtaining any assistance that may be available to have the
bathroom modifications completed. (This would assist the caregivers in safely showering her,
reducing the risk of falls, which she is fearful of. She is also heavy, and her sister, the caregiver,
has some difficulty in safely getting her into the tub.) CSI documented the following on
3/18/2011:

“Face to face visit at her house in Tecolotito. Met with her, her sister

Wl her niece and her grandniece. WM greeted CSI staff and said
goodbye before CSI staff left. She answered few questions directly. Her
sister, SR, reported that things are going well. Wilsis currently getting
paid for 32.5 hours a week through the PCO program. Sl clarified that
the issue with the bathroom is not physical accessibility, but Ifilllis desire
to take a bath or shower. Once she is in the tub she enjoys bathing, but is
resistant to the idea when suggested. No needs identified at this point.”

Plaintiffs’ also reject CSI's response to recommendation # 3, “Family should request
8012’s PCP to consider another attempt for a GYN examination and mammogram and to receive
the flu vaccine and HINI1 this fall.”

On 5/20/2011, three months after CSI had first established contact with Ms. J R and
her family, CSI documented that the PCO hours, and reimbursement, for Ms. NSSlllls sister

had been cut. There are many entries following this date that demonstrates CSI’s efforts to assist
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the family in the appeal of the PCO hour cut. DOH also appealed directly to the Human Services
Department to review any reduction in hours for individuals identified as Foley, and provided the
names of all individuals that might be impacted. Despite this, the hours for Ms. Juiiiliillil’s PCO
were reduced pursuant to a change in the rutes promulgated by the Human Services Department.
Ms. i s family was angry and blamed CSI for the outcome of the Fair Hearing. From
August 17, 2011 until 2/14/2012, the family resisted all efforts to continue visits with CSI. On
2/14/2012, the family emailed CSI that they only wanted email contact from CSI. On 8/29/2013,
the CSI supervisor contacted the family, via email, with the following message:

“Good Morning Annabel. Angela Pacheco wag your CSI contact persan

here at DOH for 1J. I have needed to reassign this case for IJ. In the past, I

have seen that you have requested only email contact and have indicated

that if you needed anything you would contact us. Please let me know if

there is anything that we can do for 1J. We would be happy to reinitiate

face to face visits on a quarterly basis. My contact info is listed below”.

A new CSI was assigned on 9/9/2013 and reviewed all Columbus recommendations with
the family. In December 2013 a third CSI worker was assigned and the family initially agreed to
resume face-to-face visits. However in January 2014, the family stated in an email that unless
CSI could increase the number of PCO hours Ms. Jullllllls was receiving, the family did not
desire any visits, The family made the same statement to CSI in March 2014 and has requested a
Do Not Contact status.

CSl asserts that they have completed the Columbus recommendations to the best of their

ability and that the guardian has the authority to decline to follow any of the recommendations

even if they consented to the assessments.



Michael Gross, Esq.
March 14, 2014 ’
Page 23 of 30

11. _I.- Mr. NS received four recommendations. CSI completed their
obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs
August 15, 2013, and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs’ object to Defendants’ response to Recommendation # 2 “Discuss with the
family the possibly [sic} of finding any community programs or day activities that may be
available”. The report that is generated out of the data base to create service plans does not
include a field for the date of entry. The report that is generated out of the database to create
contact notes does include a field for the date of entry. CSI has been asked to include dates in
their service plan documentation; however, early entries frequently did not include this
information. CSI will testify as to the approximate date of the discussion with the family that is
documented in the service plan. CSI did document in the contact notes on March 21, 2013, that
“the woman that did the assessment did not listen to them and seemed to record what she wanted
to.” CSI would not challenge the family guardian if there was a direct refusal to accept the
recommendation for day habilitation.

Plaintiffs also reject CSI’s response to Columbus recommendation #3, “Discuss with
family follow up with the physician on the status of the large lump on the back of his neck.”
Defendants have provided Plaintiffs with the dates CSI had discussions with Mr. Llllllle
mother and brother regarding medical visits. The response to this recommendation was not
untimely. [Pltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand, p. 12} The documents attached record discussions
on 2/24/2011, 6/21/2012, 12/12/2012, and 9/13/2013; the discussions in June, December and

September were all specifically regarding the lump on Mr. [@ill’s neck. On 2/11/2013 CSI
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documented that Mr. Lyl was seen regularly at a local clinic. The local clinic continued to
monitor the lump on the neck. Defendants documented the following information directly from
the Needs Assessment in their January 16, 2014 Table:
“Columbus reviewer notes that 8998 had annual physical
“examinations, laboratory work, EKG, he receives flu vaccine
annually and received HINI. He has had pneumovax and
immunizations are current”. [Defendants January 16, 2014 Table]
CSI had no reason to demand further information from the family.

12. Al C— Ms. Ol received two specific recommendations, and two
embedded recommendations. CSI has completed their obligations under the Settlement
Agreement. [See Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14,
2014]

Plaintiffs object to CSI’s responses to the embedded recommendations. The Columbus
Assessment Recommendation box did not contain the embedded recommendations. [t was not
until October 2012 under the leadership of CSI supervisor Chris Futey that these summary
statements in the body of the assessment were deemed to be de facto recommendations.

Plaintiffs first object to CSI’s response to the recommendation that Ms. GElijiiis would
also benefit greatly from training in the areas of navigating outdoors, reading Braille, money
skills, and overall development of programs to increase her independence. Plaintiffs isolate parts
of this statement. CSI dealt with the statement in its entirety, not in increments. CSI first
provided assistance to Ms. Ogilijiil in 2009, working with the Commission for the Blind to obtain

a new cane and other devices (a talking wrist watch and Braille games) for the visually impaired.

In 2010, in response to the Columbus recommendation, CSI negotiated a transfer from Ms.
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CWl s then day habilitation site, which was only available two days a week, to a new day
habilitation site (Tresco) where she could attend five days a week. This negotiation included
securing additional funding for Ms. GEEE. This has been documented in every set of contact
notes provided to Plaintiffs. Tresco does not provide formal training in independence skills, ADL
skills, Braille or navigating outdoors. Tresco is not bound by the suggestions of the Columbus
reviewer. Tresco did clarify that while the day habilitation does not formally teach the skills
identified by Columbus, the day habilitation does promote, emphasize and teach social skills,
increased friendships, recreational and leisure activities with peers. CSI has been in contact with
Ms. Cllilh’ s sistér, who is also her guardian. Ms. GG has declined CSI’s offer of assistance
to involve Ms. Ol with the Commission for the Blind in Las Cruces.

13. g BEER Mr. UMM rcccived six recommendations. CSI has
completed all but one of the six Columbus recommendations. [See Attached documents provided
to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs object to CSI’s response to the Columbus recommendation to “discuss the
possibility of him living in his own house, which is probably more space than he needs, but
would give him access to the bathroom, better ventilation, heat, a separate kitchen, and probably
a safer environment.” The Columbus recommendation was to discuss the possibility of Mr.
BEESENEER moving from the garage apartment he lives in, into his own house that he rents out.
The documents provided to Plaintiffs clearly document CSI’s discussions on this specific topic,

in 2010, 2011 and 2013. CSI’s concern regarding Mr. DGR s refusal to move led him to
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discuss the situation with Adult Protective Services August 5, 2010. APS did not remove Mr.
B

In addition to CSI’s multiple discussions with Mr. Ry, and as a result of CSI’s
mounting concerns, CSI made a referral for a corporate guardian January 28, 2013. CSI also
made a referral to APS on the same date due to Mr. Byl s living conditions. Mr.
B cmained in his garage apartment. A court hearing was held May 1, 2013. The Office
of Guardianship informed CSI that the court found Mr. Bl to have the capacity to make
his own decisions.

Mr. Bl has not expressed any interest in moving out of his garage or making any
alterations to the garage. CSI will continue to meet with Mr. BB and will continue to
make referrals to other state agencies as CSI deems appropriate for Mr. BUllllllllllls health and
safety.

Plaintiffs also object to CSI’s response to CSI's follow up on the recommendation to
determine if Mr. POyl is eligible to receive a lift for his truck through Medicaid. CSI has
documented the exceptionally complicated course of the efforts to make this determination. The
efforts of CSI to facilitate the necessary paperwork to the appropriate Medicaid vendor are
detailed in the Table provided to Plaintiffs in January 2014. Since then, CSI has determined that
the fax from the doctor’s office was never received by the Medicaid vendor, Amerigroup. Also
sinée that date, the State of New Mexico ended their contract with Amerigroup. CSI is
attempting to have Amerigroup honor the 2013 request and is beginning the process again with

the new Medicaid vendor.
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14. el PO Mr. Pl received four recommend.ations. CSl1 completed their
obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents provided to Plaintiffs
August 15,2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs object to CSI’s response to Recommendation #3, “DD Waiver services should
be expedited, if at all possible, due to his age and the length of time he has been in this facility.”
Mr. Famliliy was placed on the DD Waiver waiting list on 2/23/2011. Because Mr. Hililijhs
resides in a nursing home, he does not meet criteria for an expedited allocation to the DD
Waiver.

15. HaEER MR Mr. M@Preceived five recommendations. CSI has completed
their obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached documents provided to
Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014]

Plaintiffs object that this recommendation was not completed in a timely fashion. The
specific recommendation was to “follow up with the family on possible guardianship with the
family in the future”. The Decisional Capacity Assessment noted that:

“[...] he is content in his home and has a very supportive family. His
father is a farmer and is still working every day. His mother and sister
provide all the physical care he requires. The family takes him with them
when they go shopping or other activities in the community...There
appears to be much love in this family. The family was approached

about the possibility of guardianship. The family does not want to
pursue this at this time. The father has POA.”

Defendants have documented discussion with family regarding guardianship on 3/3/2011,
512512011, 11/26/2012, 1/15/2013, 5/21/2013, and 8/26/2013. This information was provided to

Plaintiffs in previous documents. In 2012 CS1 learned that neither Mrs. Mullijililis nor HEMER were
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citizens. The family wanted to wait until the citizenship was final for both Hector and his mother,
and this was accomplished January 2, 2013. On 1/15/2013 CSI assisted the family in completing
the Office of Guardianship application and faxed it to the Office of Guardianship.

16. J.L. Pyl Mr. DR received four recommendations, two of which were
embedded. CSI has completed their obligations under the Settlement Agreement. [See Attached
documents provided to Plaintiffs August 15, 2013 and January 14, 2014] Plaintiffs’ complain
that recommendations regarding nutritional counseling and physical and occupational therapy
assessments were not completed until 2013. [See Pltfs.” Sixth Arbitration Demand, p. 11]

Plaintiffs object to CSI’s responses to the embedded recommendations. The Columbus
Assessment Recommendation box did not contain the embedded recommendations. It was not
until October 2012 under the leadership of CSI supervisor Chris Futey that these summary
statements in the body of the assessment were deemed to be de facto recommendations.

III.  Conclusion

Former residents of the state’s institutions for the developmentally disabled are not part
of a class, their case histories and the reason they were at one time a resident of a state institution
for the developmentally disabled vary significantly. Some former residents work full time, and
others have families they successfuily raised without state intervention. There have been
individuals who went on t(.) become active duty military. Many family members have cared for
their developmentally disabled relatives without significant state oversight for 30 or 40 years. A
number of those family members expressed suspicion or simple reluctance at the offer to become

involved with the state, and building relationships of trust took months to years to establish. In
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some cases, CSI was able to quickly forge a relationship and work with the family to explore the
recommendations of the Columbus reviewer, Other families emphatically refused to participate
in any way. The range of responses to Columbus recommendations and CIS efforts from the
individuals and families varies markedly. The decisions of the individual or family who opted
not to participate, who withdrew their consent, or who were slow to respond are not evidence of
Defendants’ noncompliance, they are evidence that CSI is working with people who have the
right to self-determination. .The Settlement Agreement ac'knowledg'ed the individuals’ right to
refuse. “After receiving such notice, individuals may decline to receive the benefits of this
agreement” [Settlement Agreement 1[5 {a)]

The former residents did not seek the benefits described in the Settlement Agreement,
~ and none of the former residents are bound by the Settlement Agreement. [t is Plaintiffs and
Defendants that are bound by the terms of the Settlement Agreement, and neither can attempt to

modify the agreement years after the fact.

Respectfully submitted,
WALZ AND ASSOCIATES, P.C.

/s/ Jerry A. Walz
/s/ Kathyleen M. Kunkel
/s/ Anne T. Alexander

Jerry A. Walz
Kathyleen M. Kunkel
Anne T. Alexander
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cc: Peter Cubra, Esq.
Nancy Simmons, Esq.
John Hall, Esq.
Rachel Higgins, Esq.
Charles Peifer, Esq.
Gabrielle Sanchez-Sandoval, Esq., DOH Acting General Counsel
Cathy Stevenson, DDSD Director
Wendy Corry, Office of Systems Improvement
Kathy Baker, CSI Supervisor
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{505) 256-7690 (505) 256-7641

April 1,2014
VIA EMAIL ONLY:Mike@mikegrosslaw.com
Mr. Michael A. Gross, Arbitrator
Re: Plaintiffs’ Reply in Support of Their Sixth Arbitration Demand
Dear Arbitrator Gross:

We are writing to reply to certain assertions made by Defendant DOH in its March 14 Response to
Plaintiffs’ Sixth Arbitration Demand (“Demand™). We are only responding in this letter to those
points that are responsive to the issues we actually raised in our Demand.

As our Demand and this Reply make clear, and as Defendant’s Response tacitly acknowledges,
many of the people we are directly assisting have not received things explicitly recommended by
Columbus. Therefore, we ask that you schedule a hearing at your first convenient opportunity, to
address the violations of the Settlement Agreement that we initially brought to your attention in our
June 4, 2012 Fourth Arbitration Demand.

L Defendant’s Response Addresses Issues Not Included in This Arbitration

As an initial matter, we are concerned that Defendant’s Response is inconsistent with your explicit
direction regarding the scope of our Demand. As we explained in our Demand:

... Defendant’s CSI workers have failed to fulfill the requirements of the Settlement
Agreement in two ways. First, a majority of [the twenty-seven] people have still not
received the benefit of one or more specific recommendations made by Columbus,
although years has gone by since those recommendations were made. Second, most
of those individuals also have not received the “‘assistance from the CSI project” that
Defendant promised to provide them. At your request, Plaintiffs will address in this
letter only the first failure in this Arbitration Demand, reserving for a future date
our opportunity to address the second failure. ...

On January 16, 2014, you conducted a telephonic hearing with the parties [during
which you addressed the tables created jointly by the parties and presented to you the
previous day]. You confirmed with Plaintiffs that we had received sufficient
documentation and other information from Defendant in order to make our
determination of whether CSI has implemented the Columbus recommendations
for the twenty-seven individuals pursuant to Paragraph 3(d) of our Settlement
Agreement. You invited Plaintiffs, if we had any outstanding concerns regarding

EXHIBIT
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the completion of the relevant Columbus recommendations, to address them ina
further arbitration demand, as we are doing here.

At your request, Plaintiffs are saving for a future date their opportunity to address
with you Defendant’s other ongoing violation of the Settlement Agreement; is
Jailure to provide the “assistance from the CSI project” that was promised in 2010.

Demand at 2, 3, and 12 (emphasis added). Defendant has not objected to our understanding of your
direction to the parties regarding the limited scope of our Demand. However, in spite of your
direction, and our confirmation of the same in our Demand, Defendant spends a good portion of its
Response addressing issues that are not the subject of our Demand. For example:

... Defendants will review here the scope of the Sertlement Agreement, the CSI
“project”, and the CSI workers’ authority, resources, and practice.

Plaintiffs allege that Defendants have not complied with the Settlement Agreement
as they have failed to provide the assistance from the CSI project. Plaintiffs provide
no specific complaints and state that they are reserving this argument for a future
date. In this response, Defendants will include their efforts to provide answers fo
the questions posed by Plaintiffs regarding issues outside the Columbus
recommendations, as those questions took up much of the meetings and
communications with Plaintiffs’ counse! in September, October, and November
2013, and were part of the Tables provided to Plaintiffs in January 2014.

Response at 2 and 4 (emphasis added). We will not reply here to matters raised by Defendant in its
Response which are not within the scope of your direction and our Demand, except to note that we
dispute many of the statements made by Defendant as to these other issues which are outside this
arbitration. We reserve the right to address such issues and Defendant’s related statements, when
Defendant’s failure to provide the “assistance from the CSI project” to members of the proposed
class comes before the Arbitrator.

IL In Its Response, Defendant Re-Framed Its Position Regarding Whether The Columbus
Recommendations Have Been Completed

Rather than continuing the argument that several Columbus recommendations had actually been
“completed,” the Response shifted gears, stating instead that some Columbus recommendations
haven’t been completed because “CSI cannot impose the Columbus recommendations on individuals
with capacity, or on guardians.” See Response at 7. The current argument evidently is no longer
that all but three people have had all of their Columbus recommendations “completed.” Rather, the
Response now argues that recommendations should be deemed “complete” whenever someone has
stated they don’t want the benefit of the Columbus recommendation, irrespective of whether the
person who said “no” has any lawful authority over that member of the proposed class.

The Response “objects” that our Demand described “family decisions™ to refuse a Columbus
recommendation as a “CSI failure to implement Columbus recommendations.” See Response at 7.
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That argument is inaccurate. On many occasions, and on behalf of several individuals, we have
acknowledged before the Arbitrator that: (1) decisions by an individual whom Columbus has not
recommended for a surrogate decision maker based upon Columbus’ assessment that the person
lacks decisional capacity and (2) decisions by an individual’s court-appointed guardian, are both
legitimate situations in which Defendant can claim, not that a recommendation is “complete,” but
rather that CSI can be excused from making further efforts to get that Columbus recommendation
completed.

In the interest of clarity, we repeat here Defendant’s previous acknowledgement that a knowing and
informed decision to forego a Columbus recommendation, that is made by a competent person who
has legal authority to make the decision, is a legitimate basis for Defendant to be excused from
further efforts to get a Columbus recommendation completed.

Defendant’s Response, however, repeatedly uses statements regarding who is declining a Columbus
recommendation on behalf of an individual that muddy what should be a clear point:

[T]he majority of individuals who “have not received the benefit of one or more
specific recommendations™ declined, had a guardian or substitute decision-maker
decline, or were ineligible for a program due to other reasons.... Both {the Needs
Assessment and the Decisional Capacity Assessment] were optional and offered to
the former residents, their guardians or Powers of Attorney....

Defendants strongly object to Plaintiffs’ repeated representation that individual or
Jfamily decisions represent CSI failure to implement Columbus recommendations ...

Other families emphatically refused to participate in any way.... The decisions of
the individual or family who opted not to participate, who withdrew their consent, or
who were slow to respond are not evidence of Defendants’ noncompliance, they are
evidence that CSI is working with people who have the right to self-determination.”

Response at 2, 7, and 29 (emphasis added).

Defendant inconsistently sprinkles its Response with statements, or at least implications, that a
Columbus recommendation should be considered “complete” if: (1) an individual who is waiting for
the appointment of the guardian recommended by Columbus; (2) an individual’s “substitute decision
maker”; (3) an individual’s “power of attorney”; or (4) their “family”’ declines a Columbus
recornmendation. Respectfully, the three named Plaintiffs in the initial proposed class action which
led to the Settlement Agreement were all neglected, exploited and/or abused by people who were not
their legal guardians, but who were similarly characterized by the State as that Plaintiff’s “substitute
decision maker.”

Accordingly, a Columbus recommendation that has not been declined by a person who is both
competent to make decisions and also authorized by the law to make the decision, is not “complete,”
and Defendant is not relieved of its duty to make future efforts to get the recommendation
completed.
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III.  People Whose Recommendations Were Previously Termed “Not Completed”

We identified in our Demand three individuals whose recommendations Defendant acknowledged in
the Tables provided to us were “not completed.” Defendant’s Response objected to these
“misrepresentations” that “seem[] to indicate that Defendants have stated that the recommendations
are not completed,” and Defendant “attach[ed] the documents provided to Plaintiffs in the past year
as evidence of Defendants’ actual responses.

L REN(2882)

Regrettably, we, indeed, mistakenly characterized Ms. Rillin our Demand as one of the people for
whom Defendant explicitly characterized her recommendations as “not completed.” Rather, in the
Table provided by Defendant, Defendant did not state whether or not each of the three listed
recommendations was completed. (Unlike for every other recommendation at issue for the other 26
individuals, where Defendant specifically indicated either “COMPLETED™ or “NOT
COMPLETED.”) However, Defendant’s text shows that the three recommendations have in fact not
been completed, based on Defendant’s responses in the Table as noted below.

1. Columbus: “2882 appears to need the following DD Waiver services: ... b) Supported
Employment.”
a. Defendant: “ISP written 3/12/2013. Waiting for budget to be approved to start
services. Will take supported employment recommendation into consideration”
2. Columbus: “2882 appears to need the following DD Waiver services: ... ¢) Nutritional
Counseling to address obesity and health considerations related to hypertension and
hypercholesterolemia, including guidelines for caloric and nutrient intake, menu planning,
portion control, and cooking methods.”
a. Defendant: “ISP written 3/12/2013. Waiting for budget to be approved lo start
services. Will take supported employment recommendation into consideration.”
3. Columbus: “2882 appears to need the following DD Waiver services: ... d) Behavior
Support Consultation and assessment, including identification of needs and
recommendations for strategies and interventions.”
a. Defendant: “ISP written 3/12/2013. Team did not agree that 2882 required
behavior support services.”

T G (6209D)

According to the “DOH: Status of Completion” column of Mr. GUlllills Table, Defendant stated
“NOT COMPLETED?” for two of his recommendations, as we stated in our Demand. Defendant
refers you to the Table in support of its assertion that “CSI completed two of the three
recommendations before Mr. G died,” see Response at 9, but the Table merely confirms our
point.
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Mu TSR (6509)

According to the “DOH: Status of Completion” column of Mr. TWillR s Table, Defendant stated
“NOT COMPLETED" for one of his recommendations, as we confirmed in our Demand. Defendant
has not contradicted or otherwise challenged its own statement in the Table.

RECOMMENDATIONS DEEMED “COMPLETED” BY DEFENDANT
THAT WERE NOT COMPLETED

We identified thirteen individuals whom Defendant characterizes in the Tables as having certain of
their recommendations “Completed,” when those recommendations are actually “Not Completed.”

EN D (2618)

We identified five recommendations that should not properly be characterized as “Completed”
because, among other reasons, and according to her Table, either the “family declined” the
recommendation (1, 2, 4, and 5) or CSI “[d]iscussed with family, considering” (3). In its Response,
Defendant points out that, after Ms. TWllwas moved from the home of one sister to another in the
summer of 2013, CSI began to develop a working relationship with a different sister. Nonetheless,
Ms. Tusill® is sti!l waiting for the guardian Columbus recommended. Moreover, even setting aside
whether a sister has the authority to refuse a Columbus recommendation, Defendant’s own Table
merely states that the unauthorized sister is “considering” whether to proceed with the Columbus
recommendation, Moreover, Adult Protective Services has had cases alleging neglect of Ms. Tl
by the very “family” members whom Defendant states “declined” the Columbus recommendations.

1a REER(1882)

1. Columbus: “2882 appears to need the following DD Waiver services: a) Speech and
Language Assessment, including identification of needs and recommendations for strategies
for augmentative communication.”

In its Response, Defendant informed us that Ms. Riiillé DD Waiver services have been started.
However, Ms. REllllls situation presents an ongoing problem. She did not get the Decisional Capacity
Assessment she needed because Columbus was erroneously told that she had a guardian. Her elderly
mother was subsequently appointed guardian. However, CSI’s July 23, 2012 application for a
guardian for Ms. Rgii#states that Ms. Rgiistill needs to obtain a guardian, because her mother who
was appointed guardian after the Columbus assessments were completed is “elderly and unable to
continue as adequate decision maker.”

4502

1. Columbus: “The status of 4502’s PASRR evaluations should be reviewed. As federally
mandated under Olmstead, ...”
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The Response did not address our assertion that Columbus determined that the first PASRR was
deficient. Defendant’s follow-up PASRR merely repeated the first, deficient one, which Columbus
stated should be reviewed, because the first one, like the second one, did not address Mr. Olgilillilks
developmental and psychiatric conditions which entitled him to specialized services.

2. Columbus: “4502 could benefit from support from an advocate independent of his family in
voicing his preferences regarding his living situation and in reviewing his due process
options.”

Mr. QiR never received the recommended independent advocacy. According to Defendant, “[o]n
8/21/2012 the state Ombudsman came to the nursing home, observed Mr. il and ... did not find
anything wrong with Mr. Gl placement.” Motion at 15 (emphasis added). It is not clear
whether the ombudsman even spoke to Mr. GIllllIR; but it is clear that they did not provide the
independent advocacy.

3. Columbus: “4502 should be afforded the following DDW Services: ...”

Before his death, Mr. Gl was never afforded the services recommended by Columbus,
Defendant has provided in its Response a number of reasons for why this did not happen, but the fact
remains that this recommendation should be properly classified as “Not Completed.”

5972

Columbus recommended that Mr. Hilreceive a health care decision maker to assist him with
medical decisions. CSI learned from Mr. Hiills IDT that his brother is his HCDM and, if his brother
is not able, his aunt in Artesia can serve as HCDM. We have made CSI aware on many occasions,
including in our Demand and the Tables, that Mr. HElBS brother, “another former Training School
resident and DD Waiver participant, may be even more incapacitated than Mr. HIjilf’ Defendant has
not refuted this point in its Response. Despite the obvious problems with this situation, Defendant
takes no responsibility for this situation: *[T]he IDT reported to CSI that Mr. Kills team believes
his current supports are sufficient, however they will continue to review his need for this type of
support in the future.” See Response at 17.

Bagiite SEEEN. (6252)

1. DOH: “Individual’s POA refused Columbus assessments.”

The Response does not claim either that CSI has ever provided Ms. Ul with the Notice of her
rights required by the Settlement Agreement, or spoken to Ms. SUill herself about her right to
assistance from Defendant. We maintain that Defendant must afford Ms. Sillllllan opportunity to
express her wishes about waiving her rights under the Settlement Agreement. From the contact
notes provided to us, it is evident that CSI has spoken with Ms. Sl directly about other matters.
Defendant has given no explanation for not informing Ms. Sgiililllof her rights.
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M Tl (6509)

1. Columbus: “CSl is also being requested to assist 6509 in obtaining a Care Health [sic]
Decision Maker.”

Defendant has not said why it cannot “help Mr. Tl - - . to obtain the recommended
guardianship,” as we stated in our Demand.

2. Columbus: “6509 could also benefit from DD Waiver Services as follows: ... 2) Nutritional -
Counseling.”

The Response fails to address whether Mr. Tl has ever received the nutritional counseling. We
must assume that Defendant implicitly concedes that this recommendation is not completed.

3. Columbus: “6509 could also benefit from DD Waiver Services as follows: ... 3) Exploration
of Supported Employment options and interests.”
a. Plaintiffs: Unclear whether any day services have actually begun.

The Response fails to address whether Mr. Wil has actually begun any day services; Defendant
only confirms again that Mr. Wl was “enrolled” for day services in November 2013.

J 6590 eceased

1. Columbus: “Follow up with 6590’s caregiver to ensure that a new doctor is identified and an
annual physical is scheduled, as well as health screenings and a referral for a swallow study
is made, if indicated.”

2. Columbus: “Discuss with 6590 any interest in exploring the whereabouts of her children and
assist and support her in whatever decision she makes.” ‘

Defendant has added information that was not present in the Tables. However, although CSI
apparently spoke with Ms Ryl guardian about the recommendations for a new physician and
discussing with Ms. Fjjjiethe whereabouts of her children, all Defendant told us regarding these
recommendations is:

On November 11, 2012, CSI called Melinda Patton ... to alert her to the lack of
follow up by the appointed guardians and to discuss the Columbus recommendations.
On November 6, 2012, CSI received an email from the guardian indicating that he
would follow up on all recommendations.... On June 10, 2013, CS1 revisited the
issue of Ms. Falills children with the family. Atthis time, the family stated that Ms.
RRreferred to her stuffed animals as children.

Response at |8 (emphasis added). Defendant does not assert that the issue of her children was ever
discussed with Ms. R nor that any attempt was made to talk with Ms. [ in her native Spanish.
Defendant asserted that “CS! worked through the corporate guardians to complete the
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recommendations” See Response at 19. That evidently means that Defendant believes it is
appropriate to assign a corporate guardian to perform CSI’s responsibilities.

7777

1. Columbus: “7777 should receive extensive counseling services. She may well have PTSD,
as well as depression. .This should be initiated as soon as possible.”

Defendant is aware of the extensive and severe trauma suffered by Ms. Clllllh, because it has
previously provided to us numerous documents establishing the same. Defendant has not denied
this, We have asked Defendant to “address” the refusal by the corporate guardian and do everything
within its power to effect the recommendations of Columbus. Defendant has so far only shown that
it will, seemingly without question, defer to the decision by a corporate guardian.

W N HE (7951W)

1. Columbus: “Obtaining a healthcare decision maker.”
2. Columbus: “Obtaining power of attorney for her sister to be appointed as the authorized
decision maker.”

Defendant informs us for the first time that:

Defendants have contacted both the case manager and the sister of Ms. Hillllls. Ms.
Hyls sister has agreed that the time has come to make more permanent
arrangements for Ms. Hlllll s care and will explore POA. The CSI supervisor has
mailed the relevant documents to Ms. HlJllIK’s sister.

Response at 20-21. The actions by CSI demonstrate that, although Defendant may be on course to
complete these recommendations, at this time these recommendations remain “Not Completed.”

8012

1. Columbus: “CSI should assist family in obtaining any assistance that may be available to
have the bathroom modifications completed....”

2. Columbus: “The family should request her PCP to consider another attempt for a GYN
examination and mammogram and to receive the flu vaccine and HIN1 this fall.”

Defendant has not provided any information, as we requested, more recent than March 18, 2011
regarding assistance with bathroom modifications and addressing Ms. Jgiilllla’s behavioral
difTiculties, including her fear of medical treatment and bathing.

8998

1. Columbus: “Discuss with the family the possibly [sic] of finding any community programs
or day activities that may be available.” '
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Defendant explains that its system does not contain the date when any such discussion took place,
and that its CSI personnel did not include the date in spite of being asked to include this information.
Defendant refers to CSI’s entry on March 21, 2013 that “‘the woman that did the assessment did not
listen to them and seemed to record what she wanted to.” This comment does not appear to confirm
that CSI assisted Mr. Lymiilils to obtain day activities, or even if the discussion even involved
community programs or day activities.

2. Columbus: “Discuss with family follow-up with the physician on the status of the large lump
on the back of his neck.”

Defendant has still not provided any answer to our specific question: What did CSI do to confirm
what the family had told CSI regarding whether Mr. Lijiiilfi had been seen by a doctor to properly
evaluate the lump on his neck, including the name and location for any such doctor?

9440

I. Columbus: “9440 would also benefit greatly from training in the areas of navigating
outdoors, reading Braille, money skills, and overall development of programs to increase her
independence.”

Defendant states, “Plaintiffs isolate parts of this statement. CSI dealt with the statement in its
entirety, not in increments.” Response at 24. This recommendation, by its very structure, is
composed of subparts. Defendant’s “entirety” is composed of those subparts, and Defendant fails to
address those subparts. Defendant also observes that “Tresco is not bound by the suggestions of the
Columbus reviewer.” Id. at 25. This is, of course, true. But Defendant is bound by the

recommendations of Columbus.

2. Columbus: “9440 needs to be provided with more opportunity to develop socially, increase
friendships, and experience more recreational and leisure activities with peers. She enjoys
the day program and would like to attend full time.”

Defendant states that Ms. Ouliigilis is now at a new Tresco day hab site, “where she could attend five
days a week.” See Response at 25 (emphasis added). The Response does not make clear, however,
whether Ms. QS actually attends five days a week. It also does not make clear if Tresco’s day
habilitation provides the services and opportunities recommended by Columbus in this and the
previous recommendations.

JENND DR (9815)

1. Columbus: “Discuss the possibility of him living in his own house, which is probably more
space than he needs, but would give him access to the bathroom, better ventilation, heat, a
separate kitchen, and probably a safer environment.”
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Defendant claims that “Mr. Bl has not expressed any interest in moving out of his garage or
making any alterations to the garage.” Response at 26. As we made clear in our Demand, Mr.
BEMEEER cxplained to us his reasons for not being able to effect his desire to move out of the
garage —financial reasons. And it remains unclear what Defendant has done to address this financial
issue or to explore alternative arrangements that would satisfy Columbus’ recommendation.

2. Columbus: “Investigate if he is entitled to receive a lift for his truck through Medicaid.”
a. Plaintiffs: If the insurance company has lost the doctor’s letter, further action is still
required. CSI worker delayed contacting the doctor for years and has still not
facilitated the physician’s letter, ot an alternative method, that would allow Mr.
BURMMR to gct a lift for his wheelchair.

Defendant states that “the State of New Mexico ended their contract with [the Medicaid vendor]
Amerigroup, CSI is attempting to have Amerigroup honor the 2013 request and is beginning the
process again with the new Medicaid vendor.” Response at 26. These developments are
encouraging, but they make clear that this recommendation is still “Not Completed.”

V. RECOMMENDATIONS NOT COMPLETED IN TIMELY FASHION

We identified eight individuals for whom at least some of their recommendations, if they were
completed, were not completed in a timely fashion.

1689

1. Columbus: “DD Waiver services should be expedited, if at all possible, due to his age and
length of time he has been in this facility.” '
a. Defendant: Application “COMPLETED: 10/20/12.” DD Waiver services not
provided.

Defendant does not address timeliness.

HEER VR (1955)

l. Columbus: “Follow up with the family to discuss guardianship further.”
a. Defendant: “Guardianship completed 10/23/13.”

Defendant’s explanation for why the guardianship took so long is unavailing.

S T (2618)

1. Columbus: “This reviewer suggested to the family that they schedule a medical appointment
to specifically address 2618’s toe, foot, and knee problems and in the meantime, obtain a
walker for home use.”

a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 8/21/2013.”
2. Columbus: “Options for employment or alternatives for a meaningful day.”
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a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 8/21/2013.”
3. Columbus: “Medical/therapeutic assessment and treatment for gait and balance issues.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 8/21/2013.”
4. Columbus; “Desensitization for uncooperative/resistive behavior during medical and dental

procedure.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 8/21/2013.”

Defendant does provide pages of explanation for why CS1 personnel faited to timely discharge these
recommendations, but these too are unavailing.

H C 4502

I. Columbus: “The status of 4502’s PASRR evaluations should be reviewed. As federally
mandated under Olmstead, ...”

a. Defendant: “COMPLETED. 7/30/2012.”

2. Columbus: “4502 could benefit from support from an advocate independent of his family in
voicing his preferences regarding his living situation and in reviewing his due process
options.”

a. Defendant; “COMPLETED 8/21/2012.”
3. Columbus: “4502 should be afforded the following DDW Services: ...”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 8/13/2013”

Defendant fails to directly address, much less attempt to rebut or allay, our concerns regarding
timeliness. We take issue with Defendant’s statement that “[t]he third recommendation described
the DD Waiver services that should be afforded to Mr. CMEllIR once he was allocated to the DD
Waiver.” See Response at 15 (emphasis added). As the parties both know, DD Waiver services isa
short-hand way of describing those services which Columbus recommends for an individual even
before they get on the Waiver. Defendant’s acknowledgment of the same is evidenced by its claim
of the “extensive efforts by CSI ... to obtain the services described in the third recommendation.” Id.

J. L. 6425

1. Columbus: “6425 could benefit from nutritional counseling to address weight loss and heart-
healthy dietary needs.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED 9/12/13.”
2. Columbus: “6425 could also benefit from physical and occupational therapy assessments to
identify strategies for his optimal mobility, independence, and safety”
a, Defendant: “COMPLETED 9/12/13.”

We understand that it was not until October 2012 that CSI chose to recognize the “embedded”
recommendations as Columbus recommendations for which Defendant was responsible. However,
notwithstanding that, these two particular recommendations were not “completed” until nearly a year
later, in September 2013.
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M TIS (6509)

I. Columbus: “CSl is being requested to ascertain his current status on the DD Waiver Waiting
list and communicate this information to 6509.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 2/26/2013.”
2. Columbus: “6509 could also benefit from DD Waiver Services as follows: ... 2) Nutritional
Counseling.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 10/10/2013.”
3. Columbus: “6509 could also benefit from DD Waiver Services as follows: ... 3) Exploration
of Supported Employment options and interests.”
b. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 8/23/13.”

Defendant did address our timeliness concern with the first recommendation, but its explanation is
unavailing. Defendant failed to address our timeliness concems with the second and third
recommendations.

J P 6590

1. Columbus: “Assist 6590 in obtaining Medicaid benefits for health coverage and food stamps
as soon as possible.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: ... Food stamps 10/11/2013.”
2. Columbus: “Expedite obtaining PCO Services, if possible.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 11/01/2012.”
3. Columbus: “Follow up with 6590°s caregiver to ensure that NM ID card is obtained and
bank account is opened for 6590.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: ... 1D card: Issue date 6/12/2013.”

It appears that Defendant’s only response to our timeliness concerns regarding these three
recommendations is: “The fact that there was a delay in appointing a guardian, and then poor
response from the appointed guardian, is not evidence of CSI noncompliance with the Settlement
Agreement.” See Response at 19. This sentence, assuming it was intended as a response to these
concerns, is unspecific and unavailing.

§998

1. Columbus: “Discuss with family follow-up with the physician on the status of the large lump
on the back of his neck.”
a. Defendant: “COMPLETED: 2/11/2013.”

By way of response, Defendant refers you and us to “[tJhe documents attached record discussions on
2/24/2011, 6/21/2012, 12/12/2012, and 9/13/2013.” Looking through the attachments related to Mr.
[ SR, we do not see any reference to discussions on these four dates, much less any description of
what was discussed. Our timeliness concern arises from the date provided by Defendant in the
parties’ Table for Mr. LYl
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CONCLUSION

In light of the ongoing disputes about (1) what is required by the Settlement Agreement to
implement Columbus recommendations and (2) under what circumstances Defendant can be excused
from actually facilitating completion of Columbus recommendations, we request that you select a
date for the arbitration at your earliest opportunity, so we can schedule this matter.

Thereafter, we can address the issue raised by Defendant in the Response: how to clarify
Defendant’s obligation, in addition to getting Columbus recommendations completed, to provide
members of the proposed class with the “assistance from the CSI project” that is required by the
Settlement Agreement.

Very truly yours,

[Peter Cteé'-d/

Peter Cubra

cc via email only:
Jerry Walz (jerryawalz@walzandassociates.com)
Kathy Kunkel {Kathy Kunkel@walzandassociates.com)
Anne Alexander (AAlexander@walzandassociates.com

J. Gabrielle Sanchez-Sandoval (Gabrielle.SanchezSandoval(@)state.nm.us)

Plaintiffs’ co-counsel




	Plaintiffs Submission for DDPC's 4th Annual Report.7 1 14.final
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 4
	Exhibit 5

